
Tuesday 
October 7, 2014 
Gautier, Mississippi 
 
 BE IT REMEMBERED THAT A REGULAR MEETING of the Mayor and 
Council of the City of Gautier, Mississippi was held October 7, 2014 at 6:30 PM in 
the City Hall Municipal Building, 3330 Highway 90, Gautier, Mississippi. 
 
 Those present were Mayor Gordon Gollott, Council Members Mary Martin, 
Johnny Jones, Hurley Ray Guillotte, Casey Vaughan, Rusty Anderson, and Adam 
Colledge. Also present were Samantha Abell, City Manager; Cynthia Russell, City 
Clerk; Joshua Danos, City Attorney; and other concerned citizens. 
              

 
AGENDA 

CITY OF GAUTIER, MISSISSIPPI 
CITY HALL COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

October 7, 2014 @ 6:30 PM 
 

I. Call to Order         
 

1 Prayer 
 

2  Pledge of Allegiance 
 
II. Agenda Order Approval  
 
III. Announcements 
 
 1 24th Annual Gautier Mullet & Music Fest Saturday, October 18th and 
  Sunday, October 19th. 
 
IV.         Presentation Agenda  
 

1 Domestic Violence Awareness Proclamation. Amanda Johns, representative for 
 Gulf Coast Women’s Center for Nonviolence. 
 
2 Recognition of Gautier’s Home Town Hero Celebration volunteers. Bill Whatley,  
 American Legion Post 1992 Commander. 
 

V. Public Agenda 
       

1 Agenda Comments 
    

VI. Business Agenda  
  
 1 Resolution expressing support for a School District name change to the   
  Pascagoula-Gautier School District. 
 
 2 Order authorizing City Manager to forward the 2015 Legislative Priorities White  
  Paper Packet to Mississippi Legislators for consideration. 
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 3 Order ratifying the FY 2014 Audit Financial Statements for the year ended   
  September 30, 2013. 

  
 4 Order authorizing the Construction Engineering & Inspection Services Contract  
  with Neel-Schaffer for the Transportation Enhancement Project    
  (Streetscape Improvements) STP-094-00(008)LPA/106378-701000. 
 
 5 Order authorizing the advertisement of Contractor for Transportation 
  Enhancement Streetscape Improvements Projects – Phase III. 
 
 6 Order authorizing the submission of Notice of Intent to participate in FEMA Region  
  IV’s 2015 High Water Mark Initiative for Mississippi Coastal Communities. 
 
 7 Approval of the Revised Schedule of Authorized Positions in order to Create,  
  Eliminate and Fund Positions Within Economic Development and Planning   
  Department In the Interest of the Public. 
 
            8 Order approving the Docket of Claims. 
 
VII. Consent Agenda (All items approved in one motion) 
 
 1 Order accepting the Municipal Court Clerk’s Certificate of Attendance and 2014  
  Professional Judicial Development Certificate. 

 
 2 Order approving request for in-kind services for the 2014 Gautier Mullet & Music  
  Fest. 
 
 3 Order approving the License Agreement with Lowe’s Home Centers, Inc., for the  
  purpose of the Gautier Mullet & Music Fest. 
 
 4 Resolution amending the naming of a segment of Highway 90 as the “Scott E.  
  Pruitt Highway” to “MSgt. Scott E. Pruitt Highway”. 
 
 5 Order authorizing the acceptance of a donation by the Jackson County Board of  
  Supervisors for three (3) Harley Davidson motorcycles from the Jackson County  
  Sheriff’s Office surplus inventory. 
 

   6 Order authorizing the Jackson County AARP 1213 request to waive the pavilion fee 
   in the amount of $35.00 for an event at George Martin Park. 

 
   7 Order approving the Municipal Compliance Questionnaire for FY 2013 and FY 2014. 
   
   8 Consideration of a request to the Jackson County Board of Supervisors for the  

   purchase of a lawn mower and weed eater for Shepard State Park. 
 
   9 Order authorizing the request to waive a Minor Conditional Use fee in the amount  

   of $250.00 for Bennie Lee and Merideth Dickerson at 1420 Magnolia Bluff Drive. 
 
   10 Order approving minutes from Council Meetings held September 9th; September  

   16th; and September 23rd. 
 
   11 Order approving Lloyd Marshall Jr. Letter of Engagement for FY2014. 
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                STUDY AGENDA 
               CITY OF GAUTIER, MISSISSIPPI 

            October 7, 2014 
 

1  Discuss Citizen Comments 
 
 2 Discuss Council Comments   

 
3 Discuss City Manager Comments 

 
4 Discuss City Clerk Comments 
 
5 Discuss City Attorney Comments 

 
       Recess until October 21, 2014 at 6:30 PM 

      www.gautier-ms.gov  
              
 
Councilwoman Martin made the motion to add Business Item #9 – Approval of 
application for Special Event Permit of Azteca’s Mexican Restaurant in the amount of 
$200.00 to rent a City digital portable sign for a tourist-oriented special event “Aztecas 
Welcomes Cruisers of the Coast” and approve the agenda order. Councilman 
Colledge seconded the motion and the vote unanimously carried. 
              
 
Announcements 
 
 1. 24th Annual Gautier Mullet & Music Fest Saturday, October 18th and  
  Sunday, October 19th.         
              
 
Presentation Agenda 
 
 1. Domestic Violence Awareness Proclamation. Amanda Johns,   
  representative for Gulf Coast Women’s Center for Nonviolence. 
 
 2. Recognition of Gautier’s Home Town Hero Celebration volunteers.  
  Bill Whatley, American Legion Post 1992 Commander. 
              
 
Agenda Comments 
 
 Joe Belles resident at 1501 Magnolia Bluff commented on Business Item #7- 
 Approval of the Revised Schedule of Authorized Positions in order to Create,  
 Eliminate and Fund Positions within Economic Development and Planning  
 Department in the Interest of the Public. 
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There came for consideration of the Mayor and Members of the Council of the 
City of Gautier, Mississippi, the following: 

 
RESOLUTION NUMBER 023-2014 

   
                                        A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

GAUTIER, MISSISSIPPI, REQUESTING THAT THE PASCAGOULA 
SCHOOL BOARD CONSIDER A DISTRICT NAME CHANGE TO THE 

PASCAGOULA-GAUTIER SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 

WHEREAS, The Pascagoula School District has served the citizens of Gautier 
for more than fifty years; and  
 

WHEREAS, The City of Gautier desires to recognize the students who proudly 
contribute to the many accomplishments of the District and who reside in Gautier; and  
 

WHEREAS, The City of Gautier finds that nearly fifty percent of the students in 
the District reside in Gautier; and  
 

WHEREAS, The City of Gautier further finds that name recognition will enhance 
and promote District pride; and  
 

WHEREAS, The City currently suffers from a lack of identification with the District 
outside the region; and 
 

WHEREAS, The District’s academic excellence is essential to the promotion of 
Gautier for attracting new residents and encouraging economic development; and 
 

WHEREAS, The addition of the name Gautier further promotes the rich ancestral 
French heritage of the region in addition to the Pascagoula Native American heritage; 
and 
 

WHEREAS, The City of Gautier finds that the District name change would have 
minimal financial impact as the name can be integrated overtime as new purchases are 
made for supplies, equipment and vehicles. 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City of Gautier hereby requests 
in a spirit of gratitude and partnership, that the School Board consider officially changing 
the District name to the Pascagoula-Gautier School District. 
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BE IT KNOWN THAT the motion to approve the foregoing resolution was made 
by Councilwoman Martin and was seconded by Councilman Vaughan and the 
following vote was recorded: 
 
  Mayor     Gordon Gollott  AYES 
  Councilwoman at Large   Mary Martin   AYES  
  Councilman Ward 1   Johnny Jones  AYES 
  Councilman Ward 2  Hurley Ray Guillotte AYES 
  Councilman Ward 3  Casey Vaughan  AYES 
  Councilman Ward 4  Rusty Anderson  AYES 
  Councilman Ward 5  Adam Colledge  AYES 
 
 
RESOLVED, this the _7th__ day of _October, 2014 
 
ATTEST:      MAYOR 
 
 
__________________________   ___________________________ 
CITY CLERK                       GORDON GOLLOTT 
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 There came for consideration of the Mayor and Members of the Council of the 
City of Gautier, Mississippi, the following: 
 

ORDER NUMBER 226-2014 
 

 IT IS HEREBY ORDERED by the Mayor and Members of the Council of the City 
of Gautier, Mississippi, that the City Manager is hereby authorized to forward the 2015 
Legislative Priorities Packet to the Mississippi Legislators for consideration. 
 
 IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that the City Manager or City Clerk is authorized to 
execute any and all documents necessary. 
 
 Motion was made by Councilwoman Martin, seconded by Councilman 
Anderson and the following vote was recorded: 
 
 AYES: Gordon Gollott 
   Mary Martin 
   Johnny Jones 
   Hurley Ray Guillotte 
   Casey Vaughan 
   Rusty Anderson 
   Adam Colledge 
 
 NAYS: None 
 
              
       MAYOR 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
       
CITY CLERK 
 
 Passed and Adopted by Mayor and Members of the Council of the City of 
Gautier, Mississippi, at the meeting of October 7, 2014. 
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CITY OF GAUTIER 
 
 

MISSION 
To enhance the quality of life of the citizens of Gautier and 

our neighborhoods by providing exceptional government services. 
 
 

VISION 
We strive to achieve efficient and 

responsible service; a highly trained, competent workforce; and 
responsible stewardship of resources. 

 
 

VALUES 
℘  PEOPLE  ℘  INTEGRITY  ℘  PROSPERITY 
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STRATEGIC PRIORITIES 
 
In June 2009, the City of Gautier unanimously adopted a Comprehensive Plan that provides the 
foundation for the following eight strategic priorities. These initiatives are reflected throughout 
our legislative package either by specific requests or through the City’s stance on issues of 
regional or statewide significance. 
 
 
Our Strategic Priorities are: 
 

৹  Community Maintenance 
           . . . aesthetically improve all areas of the City 
 

      ৹  Strengthening a Recreational Waterfront 
            . . . cultivate public and private investments in the economic engine of the Coast 
 

      ৹  Focus on the Town Center Master Plan and I-10 Corridor 
            . . . promote economic renewal and strategic development 
 

      ৹  Environmentally Sustainable Local Government Policies 
           . . . develop and implement pro‐environmental policies 
 

      ৹  College Park Community Redevelopment 
           . . . stimulate further redevelopment opportunities 
 

      ৹  Operational Performance and Efficiency 
           . . . focus on improving efficiency and performance 
 

      ৹  Promote Public Safety 
            . . . reduce violent crime among youth and adults 
 

      ৹  Customer Service 
           . . . maintain and improve the quality our customers’ experiences 
 
 
While recognizing that the City is involved in many other important activities, these eight 
initiatives will be our focus as we plan future activities and deploy resources. 
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FACTS ABOUT THE CITY OF GAUTIER 
 
The City of Gautier is home to the Mississippi Gulf Coast Community College’s Jackson County 
Campus, nationally ranked as a top ten community college and established in 1911. Gautier 
enjoys one of the highest elevations along the Gulf Coast, with sprawling bluffs and also low-
lying fishing villages within its 33 square miles. More than 70 miles of waterfront line Gautier, 
nestled between bayous, barrier islands, and the only unimpeded waterway in the United 
States, the Pascagoula River. Gautier is “Nature’s Playground”, boasting numerous parks and 
coastal recreation, including the 19,000-acre U.S. Fish and Wildlife’s Sandhill Crane Refuge and 
395-acre Shepard State Park.  
 
Gautier lies one hour west of Mobile and less than two hours east of New Orleans, in the center 
of Jackson County on the Mississippi Gulf Coast.  Gautier is also centrally located between the 
City of Pascagoula (the largest industrial area of Mississippi with thousands of high-paying 
manufacturing jobs), and the Biloxi-Gulfport area (with a high concentration of tourism related 
jobs, many in the gaming industry).   
 
Historic Profile 
In 1699, the King of France sent Pierre Lemoyne D’Iberville to establish a fort on the bluff in 
Gautier where the prominent homestead referred to as La Maison Gautier or “The Old Place” 
still stands today. The Gautier family moved from New Orleans after the Civil War, and 
established a sawmill and several sprawling homesteads along the bluffs and beach line that 
can still be visited today.  
 
The City of Gautier was incorporated in 1986. In February, 2002, the City of Gautier completed 
its annexation process, which tripled the size of our city. The annexation included large areas of 
land to the west and north of the city.  The annexation increased population by approximately 
fifty percent and positioned the city for additional growth along the Mississippi Highway 57 (MS 
57) and U.S. Highway 90 (US 90) corridors. It also placed legal requirements for expansion of 
city services and infrastructure to the newly annexed areas. 
 
Government 
Gautier operates under a progressive and business-friendly “City Manager-Council” structural 
form, in which the city and city employees are directed by a professional city manager. 
Oversight is provided by City Council with one member elected from each ward, one member 
elected at large and one member elected as mayor. The mayor serves as chairman for council 
meetings and honorary representative of the city.  Both the Mayor and the members of the City 
Council are elected for concurrent four-year terms. 
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LEGISLATIVE PRIORITIES 
 
 

General Principles 
 
Gautier supports legislation to foster economic prosperity along the Gulf Coast and protect the 
City’s ability to provide basic municipal services to its citizens. 
 

 Defend against state revenue reductions or legislation that hampers the City’s ability to 
extend basic city services.  

 Protect shared state revenue sources available to the City, and provide new revenue 
options and flexibility in the use of existing revenues. 

 Support long-term sustainability efforts related to City financial, environmental and 
transportation goals. 

 
 
City of Gautier 2015 Legislative Priorities 
 

1. Gautier opposes any new mandates that draw on City resources, and opposes any 
further shifting of costs or services from federal and state government to cities. 

 
2. Gautier supports an overhaul to the 1972 Growth Management Act as it relates to 

requirements for the rezoning of property. Changes are necessary in the interest of 
sustainability and economic development. 
 

3. Gautier supports special legislation to create a pilot program in Pascagoula, Gautier and 
Flowood. This pilot program, called a “Community Redevelopment Area”, is a special 
district within the town center for the purpose of community development. 

 
4. Gautier supports legislation to repeal Senate House Bill No. 3100, Section 42 Housing 

Law.  
 

5. Gautier supports legislation to repeal the 1987 Certificate of Need process for hospital 
facilities. 

 
6. Gautier supports all efforts on behalf of the Mississippi Gulf Coast Community College’s 

Jackson County Campus. 
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LEGISLATIVE PRIORITIES 
 
1. Gautier opposes any new mandates that draw on City resources, and opposes any further 

shifting of costs or services from Federal and State Government to cities. 
 
July 1, 2014, the Gautier Mayor and Council approved Resolution 54, a resolution 
responding to the Environmental Protection Agency’s proposed new rule to define “Waters 
of the U.S.” and place local drainage ways under the permitting and regulatory authority of 
the U.S. Army Corp of Engineers. The city joins other governments nationwide who object 
to the proposed over-reach. The result is a gross hindrance to private property rights and 
unfunded mandates, by giving the federal government discretion on a case-by-case basis of 
what constitutes “water of the US”. As Gautier is surrounded by waterway on three sides 
and thousands of miles of waterways, the proposed rule is a major threat to sustainability 
and sovereignty.   

 
 
2. Gautier supports an overhaul to the 1972 Growth Management Act as it relates to 

requirements for the rezoning of property, in the interest of sustainability and economic 
development. 
 
An overhaul to Mississippi’s Growth Management Act is long overdue, considering how 
both the world economy and local community development practices have changed in the 
last forty years. Rezoning is only one component of the GMA that needs updating. However, 
this law has become a choking point for smart growth. The solution is to allow economic 
development to be a legally permissible justification for the “need” to rezone, if the 
rezoning request is made by the property owner, and not government. 
 
Furthermore, rezoning property only after there is a change in the character of the land is 
reactionary; it is the stark opposite of sound planning. For the purposes of conservation and 
sustainability, governments must be permitted to rezone property prior to a change in the 
character of the land. 
 
State law requires either an error in the initial zoning; a change in the character of the use 
of the land; or some compelling “need” before existing zoning may be changed. The 
Mississippi Supreme Court has found that the law does not allow a municipality to consider 
the finding of “need” to be justified by economic development. This greatly hinders private 
property rights. Governments base their Official Zoning Map on a long-rage comprehensive 
plan which does not provide for a response to unforeseen opportunity. Governments 
cannot anticipate physical, cultural, and economic obstacles or opportunities. Government 
should not be dictating the free market by rigid laws which do not allow for consideration of 
free market opportunities. Private property owners should be able to request a rezoning 
public hearing in consideration of the best use of their property. However, existing law 
prohibits most privately-initiated rezoning requests because a government is unclear how 
to justify “need” by data and analysis, if economic development is not a consideration.   
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3. Gautier supports special legislation to create a pilot program in the cities of Pascagoula, 

Gautier and Flowood. This pilot program, called a “Community Redevelopment Area”, is a 
special district within the town center for the purpose of community development. 
 
The purpose of the pilot legislation is to utilize these cities as a testing ground for measuring 
the “before and after” applications of economic revitalization incentives to eliminate slum 
and blight. The pilot program allows for the creation of a Community Redevelopment Area 
(CRA) which allows for the increase in “home rule” local autonomy in decision making for 
addressing the needs of community development.  
 
The CRA does not affect school or state share of taxes. The district merely allows for the 
CRA Board to enter into a development agreement to rebate a developer with local public 
funds for the revitalization of blighted areas, within the CRA district. 
 
Currently municipalities have no way to directly incentivize commercial developers to 
renovate existing privately owned buildings for reuse/redevelopment.  Not being able to 
attract this type of investment results in: 
 

 Increased debt burden by cities utilizing bonds and loans as opposed to development 
agreements to address community development needs 

 Loss of commercial development projects 

 Increase in commercial blighted properties/vacant buildings 

 Increase in sprawl, as it is currently more financially feasible to construct new buildings as 
opposed to redeveloping existing commercial buildings. 
 
Community Redevelopment Agencies: What, When, and How 
CRAs, as they are known, are quite common in other states. Local governments are able to 
designate areas as Community Redevelopment Areas when certain conditions exist. Since 
all the monies used in financing CRA activities are locally generated, CRAs are not overseen 
by the state, but redevelopment plans must be consistent with local government 
comprehensive plans.  
 
What is a Community Redevelopment Agency? 
The activities and programs offered within a Community Redevelopment Area are 
administered by the Community Redevelopment Agency. A five- to seven-member CRA 
“Board” created by the local government (city or county) directs the agency. The Board can 
be comprised of local government officials and or other individuals appointed by the local 
government. Although one local government may establish multiple CRA districts, there 
generally may be only one CRA Board. Each district must maintain separate trust funds, and 
expend those funds only in that district. 
 
What is a Community Redevelopment Plan? 
The Community Redevelopment Agency is responsible for developing and implementing the 
Community Redevelopment Plan that addresses the unique needs of the targeted area. The 
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plan includes the overall goals for redevelopment in the area, as well as identifying the 
types of projects planned for the area. 
 
Examples of traditional projects include: streetscapes and roadway improvements, building 
renovations, new building construction, flood control initiatives, water and sewer 
improvements, parking lots and garages, neighborhood parks, sidewalks and street tree 
plantings. The plan can also include redevelopment incentives such as grants and loans for 
such things as façade improvements, sprinkler system upgrades, signs, and structural 
improvements. The redevelopment plan is a living document that can be updated to meet 
the changing needs within the Community Redevelopment Area; however, the boundaries 
of the area cannot be changed without starting the process from the beginning. 
 
CRAs are a specifically focused financing tool for redevelopment. CRA Boards do not 
establish policy for the cities – they develop and administer a plan to implement that policy. 
The CRA acts officially as a body distinct and separate from the governing body, even when 
it is the same group of people. The CRA has certain powers that the city by itself may not 
do, such as leverage local public funds (Sales tax and ad valorem). In summary, the CRA 
does not affect school or state share of taxes. The district merely allows for the CRA Board 
to enter into a development agreement to rebate a developer with local public funds for 
the revitalization of blighted areas, within the CRA district. 
 
 

4. Gautier supports legislation to repeal Senate House Bill No. 3100, Section 42 Housing Law.  
 

For the last eight years, local governments have struggled under the burden of an unfair 
and expensive law that allows some of the most valuable properties in our counties to 
escape payment of local property taxes. The continuing situation has serious ramifications 
for county and city budgets, on school district funding and on the property tax burdens of 
other hard working local taxpayers.  
 
These federally subsidized developments (called Section 42 properties because their owners 
receive extremely valuable federal subsidies under Section 42 of the IRS Code in exchange 
for building them) provide low and moderate income housing. In 2005, the Mississippi 
Legislature passed a law giving the owners of these multi-million dollar developments 
another large tax benefit resulting in their payment of little, if any, local property taxes. The 
bottom line is that for the last eight years, these taxpayers’ unfair avoidance of local tax 
liability has resulted in a substantial loss of revenue to local governments, from hundreds of 
thousands to millions of dollars, depending on the county in question. As a consequence, 
the tax breaks have caused an unfair and disproportionate shifting of tax burdens in 
counties and cities across the state to single family homeowners and less valuable multi-
family housing properties, some of which are losing tenants to the federally subsidized 
properties and struggling to remain in business. Jackson County needs your help to change 
this law.  
 
Local governments have had enough. The day is fast approaching when local millage rates 
will have to be raised in order to provide basic services like road maintenance, police and 
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fire protection and public education to the residents of these developments whose owners 
do not pay a proportionate share of local taxes, and in some cases no taxes, to help pay for 
these services.  
 
As a result of the recent court decision, Gautier will be required to refund these section 42 
housing developers $101,885.00 and an additional $833,000.00 over the life of the project, 
or $32,000 per year. 

 
Counties, municipalities and local school districts are once again marshaling resources to 
convince the legislature to correct this inequity and restore tax fairness to our local 
communities. We call on our local legislators to vote to repeal the 2005 law that allows 
Section 42 developments to avoid payment of local taxes that other, less financially able 
taxpayers are being required to pick up. Property taxes should be based on the local 
property’s true value determined by taking into consideration all factors that lend value to 
that property. Preventing that in all cases but in the case of these federally subsidized 
properties is an injustice that can no longer be tolerated. Our legislators must be responsive 
to this unified cry for help from local governments and schools across the state if they are to 
retain reputations as supporters of their local constituents and their interests rather than 
the interests of wealthy developers. 
 

5. Gautier supports legislation to repeal the 1987 Certificate of Need process for hospital 
facilities (House Bill 457). 

The antiquated 1974 Certificate of Need process critically hampers the free competition of 
medical services, driving up costs and severely limiting access to quality healthcare. It’s time 
for Mississippi to remove its certificate-of-need requirement that limits where hospitals, 
nursing homes and other health care facilities can open and what services they can offer. 
Facilities that have CONs have a seemingly financial interest in keeping the system in place 
to minimize their potential competition. The CON process is incredibly lengthy and 
competing health care facilities get bogged down in protracted legal battles to deny the 
issuance of a CON rather than let the free market determine the need and demand.  For 
example, if a nursing home wants to add beds or if a medical office wants to add a magnetic 
resonance imaging machine, each would need to file a CON application that lists details of 
the proposal, including the cost. 

On its website, the Mississippi State Department of Health publishes a timetable for trying 
to get a certificate of need. Even without opposition from a competing facility, it takes 
months during a volatile market given federal healthcare reform. With opposition, it can 
drag on for years; with no guarantee an applicant will be granted a CON. It is time to repeal 
this 1974 law for the growth of the health care industry, the Coast’s medical corridor, and 
the State.  
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6. Gautier supports all efforts on behalf of the Mississippi Gulf Coast Community College’s 
Jackson County Campus. 

The Jackson County campus is a vital part of Gautier’s community. It boasts a strong 
workforce development program through on-going training partnerships with such Jackson 
County industries as Huntington Ingalls and ChevronTexaco. MGCCC promotes its 
community by partnering with local industries such as WLOX TV, The ChevronTexaco 
Pascagoula Refinery, and Keesler Federal Credit Union. MGCC’s campus provides top notch 
cultural and performing arts facilities. 

The Estuarine Education Center (EEC) provides a great service to the community, giving 
residents and visitor’s tourism opportunities, including birding, photography and paddling. 
The center is a hub of experientially-based learning, and it will expand environmental and 
marine technology educational offerings, and add natural resource management and 
outdoor recreation leadership opportunities, for associate degree programs, community-
based outreach programs, and research-based programs.  
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS 
 
Order authorizing the City Manager to forward the 2015 Legislative Priorities Packet to 
Mississippi Legislators 
 
Resolution for the Repeal of Senate Bill No.3100, Section 42 Housing Law 
 
Resolution 54, A Resolution responding to the Environmental Protection Agency’s 
proposed new rule to define “Waters of the U.S.” and place local drainage ways under the 
permitting and regulatory authority of the U.S. Army Corp of Engineers. 
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There came for consideration of the Mayor and Members of the Council of the 
City of Gautier, Mississippi, the following: 
 

ORDER NUMBER 227-2014 
 

  IT IS HEREBY ORDERED by the Mayor and Members of the Council of the City 
 of Gautier, Mississippi, that the ratification of the Audited Financial Statements for 
 the year ended September 30, 2013. 
 
  IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that the City Manager or City Clerk is authorized to 
 execute any and all documents necessary. 

 
 Motion was made by Councilwoman Martin, seconded by Councilman Jones 
and the following vote was recorded: 
 
 AYES: Gordon Gollott 
   Mary Martin 
   Johnny Jones 
   Hurley Ray Guillotte 
   Casey Vaughan 
   Rusty Anderson 
   Adam Colledge 
 
 NAYS: None 
  
              
       MAYOR 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
       
CITY CLERK 
 
 Passed and Adopted by Mayor and Members of the Council of the City of 
Gautier, Mississippi, at the meeting of October 7, 2014. 
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MEMBER: American Institute of CPA's                     LLOYD B. MARSHALL, JR. 
    Mississippi Society of CPA's    CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANT 

 

 

          

                 INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 
 
 
 
Report on the Financial Statements  
 

I have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the 
business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information 
of the City of Gautier, Mississippi, as of and for the year ended September 30, 2013, and 
the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the City's basic 
financial statements as listed in the table of contents.  
 
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial 
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal 
control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.  
 
Auditor’s Responsibility 
 
My responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on my audit. 
I conducted my audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in 
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. 
Those standards require that I plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s 
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor 
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the 
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of 
the entity’s internal control.  Accordingly, I express no such opinion.  An audit also 
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as 
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 
 
I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for my audit opinions. 
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Summary of Opinions  
 
Opinion Unit        Type of Opinion 
Governmental Activities      Qualified 
Business-Type Activities      Qualified 
General Fund        Unmodified 
Capital Projects Funds      Unmodified 
Water & Sewer Fund       Unmodified 
Solid Waste Fund       Unmodified 
Aggregate Remaining Fund Information    Unmodified 
 
Basis for Qualified Opinions on Government-Wide Financial Statements and 
Proprietary Funds Financial Statements and Capital Assets Note to the Financial 
Statements  
 
Because of the inadequacy of accounting records for the fiscal year ended September 30, 
2013, that relate to the fixed assets, accumulated depreciation and depreciation expense, I 
was unable to form an opinion regarding those amounts and net assets invested in capital 
assets, net of related debt, for the Government-Wide Financial Statements, which 
includes amounts at which property and equipment and accumulated depreciation, and 
the amount of depreciation expense for the year then ended, as outlined in the Capital 
Assets Note to the Financial Statements, are recorded in the accompanying balance sheet 
at September 30, 2013, and the Proprietary Funds Financial Statements which includes 
amounts at which property and equipment and accumulated depreciation, and the amount 
of depreciation expense for the year then ended, as also outlined in the Capital Assets 
Note to the Financial Statements, are recorded in the accompanying balance sheet at 
September 30, 2013. As a result, I was unable to form an opinion on the respective net 
assets to which these balances are related.    
 
Qualified Opinions   
 
In My opinion, except for the effects of the matter described in the “Basis for Qualified 

Opinions on Government-Wide Financial Statements and Proprietary Funds Financial 

Statements and Capital Assets Note to the Financial Statements” paragraph, the financial 
statements referred to above  present fairly, in all material respects, the respective 
financial position of the City of Gautier, Mississippi, as of September 30, 2013, and the 
respective changes in financial position thereof for the year then ended in accordance 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.  
 
Unmodified Opinions 
 
In my opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material 
respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-
type activities, the General Fund, the Capital Projects Fund, the Water & Sewer Fund, the 
Solid Waste Fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Gautier, 
Mississippi, as of September 30, 2013, and the respective changes in financial position 
and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 
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Other Matters 
 
 
Report on Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards Required by OMB Circular A-
133     
 
 
 
I have audited the financial statements of City of Gautier as of and for the year ended 
September 30, 2013, and have issued my report thereon dated June 30, 2014, which 
contained an unmodified opinion on those financial statements. My audit was conducted 
for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a whole. The 
accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of 
additional analysis as required by OMB Circular A-133 and is not a required part of the 
financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was 
derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to 
prepare the financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing 
procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional 
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the 
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the 
financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with 
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In My opinion, the 
schedule of expenditure of federal awards is fairly stated in all material respects in 
relation to the financial statements as a whole.  
 
 
 
Required Supplementary Information   
 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the 
management’s discussion and analysis and budgetary comparison information on pages 7 
through 14 and Pages 54 through 58 respectively, be presented to supplement the basic 
financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial 
statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers 
it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in 
an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain 
limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of 
inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing 
the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic 
financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic 
financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the 
information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to 
express an opinion or provide any assurance. 
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Other Supplementary Information  
   

My audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements 
that collectively comprise the City of Gautier's basic financial statements. The 
accompanying the schedule of surety bonds of municipal officials is presented for 
purposes of additional analysis as required by the State of Mississippi and is not a 
required part of the financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of 
management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and 
other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has been 
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and 
certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information 
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial 
statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in 
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. 
In My opinion, the schedule of surety bonds of municipal officials is fairly stated in all 
material respects in relation to the financial statements as a whole.   
  
Other Matter 
 
In my original report dated June 30, 2014, I indicated that the City of Gautier, 
Mississippi, did not present the management’s discussion and analysis and the Budgetary 
Comparison Schedule - General Fund, the Schedule of Budget-to-Actual Reconciliation - 
General Fund, the Notes to Budgetary Comparison Schedule - General Fund and the 
Schedule of Budget-to-Actual Reconciliation - MS Development Bank Katrina Loan 
Fund. Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require 
that the required supplemental information referred to above be presented to supplement 
the basic financial statements. As shown on pages 7 through 15 and 54 through 58, the 
City has presented the information which was not included in the original report dated 
June 30, 2014. However, these additions have not changed my report date which stays 
June 30, 2014, but has changed my comments on the required supplemental information. 
 
Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards   
 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, I have also issued my report dated 
June 30, 2014 on my consideration of the City of Gautier’s internal control over financial 
reporting and on my tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts, and grant agreements and other matters.  The purpose of that report is to 
describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal 
control over financial reporting or on compliance.   That report is an integral part of an 
audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering City 
of Gautier’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 
 
 
 
Gautier, Mississippi  
June 30, 2014 
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CITY OF GAUTIER, MISSISSIPPI 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
For the Year Ended September 30, 2013 

 
 
 
The discussion and analysis of the City of Gautier, Mississippi's (the City's) financial performance provides an 
overall narrative review of the City's financial activities for the year ended September 30, 2013. The intent of this 
discussion and analysis is to look at the City's performance as a whole; readers should also review the basic 
financial statements and the notes to the financial statements to enhance their understanding of the City's financial 
performance. Information contained in this section is qualified by the more detailed information contained 
elsewhere in the City's financial statements, notes to financial statements and any accompanying materials. To the 
extent this discussion contains any forward-looking statements of the City's plans, objectives, expectations and 
prospects, the actual results could differ materially from those discussed herein. 

 
The City implemented Governmental Accounting Standards Board's (GASB) Statement No. 34 - Basic Financial 
Statements - and Management's Discussion and Analysis - for State and Local Governments issued June 1999, for 
the first time during fiscal year 2004. As discussed in Footnote 1, Statement No. 34 allows for certain transition 
treatments in regards to infrastructure. As of fiscal year-end September 30, 2013, the City has not completed 
implementation for previously constructed infrastructure assets. 

 
FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS  

 
•  In 2013 and 2012, the City's net position amounted to $31,068,331 and $27,419,091, respectively. The net 

position for governmental activities totaled $11,099,393 in 2013 and $8,231,573 in 2012, contributing 
35.73% and 30.02%, respectively, of the total net position; business-type activities contributed 64.27% 
and 69.98%, totaling $19,968,938 in 2013 and $19,187,518 in 2012. 
 

•  General revenues for 2013 and 2012 were $7,687,948 and $7,645,641, equaling 43.36% and 41.08% of 
all revenues, respectively. Program specific revenues in the form of charges for services and grants and 
contributions were $10,616,948 and $10,959,689, equaling 58.33% and 58.92% of total revenues. 

 
•  In 2013 and 2012, the City had $15,057,033 and $15,926,170 in expenses, respectively; only 

$10,044,587and $10,959,689 of these expenses were offset by program specific charges for services, 
grants and contributions. 
 

• Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, totaled $46,424,807 in 2013 and $45,554,857 in 
2012. 
 

OVERVIEW OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the City's basic financial statements. The 
City's basic financial statements are comprised of the following three components: 1) government- wide financial 
statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements. This report also contains 
other supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements themselves. 
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CITY OF GAUTIER, MISSISSIPPI 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
For the Year Ended September 30, 2013 

 
 
 
Government-wide financial statements - The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide 
readers with a broad overview of the City's finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business. These 
statements are prepared using the accrual basis of accounting and include all assets and liabilities. 

 
The statement of net assets presents information on all of the City's assets and liabilities, with the difference 
between the two reported as net assets. Over time, increases or decreases in net assets may serve as a useful 
indicator of whether the financial position of the City is improving or deteriorating. 

 
The statement of activities presents information showing how the City's net assets changed during the most recent 
fiscal year. All changes in net assets are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, 
regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some 
items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal years. 

 
The government-wide financial statements outline both functions of the City and business-type activities. 

 
The governmental activities of the City include police and fire protection, parks, recreation, public works, urban 
and economic development, and general administrative services. The business-type activities include the water 
and sewer system and its related projects. 

 
The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 18 and 19 of this report. 

 
Fund financial statements - Fund financial statements tell how these services were financed in the short term, as 
well as what remains for future spending. Fund financial statements also report the City's operations in more 
detail than the government-wide financial statements by providing information about the City's most significant 
funds. The City uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal 
requirements. The fund financial statements are comprised of the following funds: governmental and proprietary 
(enterprise) funds. 

 
Notes to the financial statements - The notes provide additional information that is essential to a user's 
understanding of the basic financial statements. The notes to the financial statements can be found on pages 32-52 
of this report. 

 
Other information - In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also presents 
certain required supplementary information concerning the City's budget process. 

 
The City adopts an annual operating budget for all governmental funds. A Budgetary Comparison Statement has 
been provided for the General Fund. This required supplementary information can be found on pages 54-60 of 
this report. 
 
Reporting the City's Most Significant Funds  

 
Fund financial statements begin on page 22 and provide detailed information about the most significant funds. 
Some funds are required to be established by State law. However, the City Council establishes many other funds 
to help it control and manage money for particular purposes or to show that it is meeting legal responsibilities for 
using certain taxes, grants, and other money. The City's two major types of funds are discussed below: 
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CITY OF GAUTIER, MISSISSIPPI 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
For the Year Ended September 30, 2013 

 
Governmental funds - Most of the City's basic services are reported in governmental funds, which focus 
on how money flows into and out of these funds and the balances left at year-end that are available for 
spending. These funds are reported using an accounting method called modified accrual accounting, 
which measures cash and all other financial assets that can readily be converted to cash. 
 
The governmental fund statements provide a detailed short-term view of the City's general government 
operations and the basic services it provides. Governmental fund information helps determine whether 
there are more or fewer financial resources that can be spent in the near future to finance the City's 
programs. We describe the relationship (or differences) between governmental activities (reported in the 
Statement of Net position and the Statement of Activities) and governmental funds in the reconciliation's 
found on pages 23 and 25. 

 
Proprietary funds - When the City charges customers for the services it provides, these services are 
generally reported in proprietary funds. Proprietary funds are reported in the same manner that all 
activities are reported in the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities. Proprietary funds 
include the Water and Sewer and Sewer Expansion funds. Other nonmajor proprietary funds include the 
Solid Waste and Sewer Rehab funds which are combined into a single column on the proprietary fund 
financial statements. These funds are the same as the business-type activities reported in the 
government- wide financial statements but provide more detail and additional information, such as cash 
flows. The accrual basis of accounting is used for proprietary funds. 

 
GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS  
 
Net assets - Net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government's financial position. 
The following table presents a summary of the City's net position for the fiscal years ended September 
30, 2013 and 2012. 

Net Position 
 

Governmental Activities  Business-type Activities   Total               
      2013             2012           2013             2012              2013            2012       

Current and other assets  $  4,511,450    4,076,521    7,027,017       3,845,348   11,538,467      7,921,869  
Capital assets      15,364,245  13,885,323  31,060,562     31,669,534   46,424,807    45,554,857  

Total assets     19,875,695  17,961,844  38,087,579     35,514,882   57,963,274    53,476,726  
Long-term debt outstanding     7,584,519    8,415,104  15,741,653     14,046,808   23,326,172    22,461,912  
Other liabilities       1,191,783    1,315,167    2,376,988       2,280,556     3,568,771      3,595,723 
Total liabilities   $  8,776,302    9.730,271  18,118,641     16,327,364   26,894,943    26,057,635  
 
Net position: 
Invested in capital assets,  

net of debt   $  6,800,456    4,655,983   13,510,231     15,930,347   20,310,687    20,586,330 
Restricted        2,568,497    2,569,532     4,567,517       1,330,819     7,136,014      3,900,351 
Unrestricted        1,730,440    1,006,058     1,891,190       1,926,353     3,621,630      2,932,411 
Total net position   $11,099,393    8,231,573   19,968,938     19,187,519   31,068,331    22,754,253  
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CITY OF GAUTIER, MISSISSIPPI 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

For the Year Ended September 30, 2013 
 

The City's restricted net position accounted for 22.97% of total net position in 2013, and 14.22% in 
2012. Investment in capital assets (e.g. land, construction in progress, buildings, equipment, and 
infrastructure) accounted for 65.37% of total net position in 2013 and 75.08% in 2012, respectively. The 
remaining balance consisted of unrestricted net position, is the part of net position used to finance 
everyday operations without constraints of legal requirements. 
 
The following are significant transactions that have had an impact on the Statement of Net Position. 
 
• In 2004, the City implemented the new standards of GASB 34 which requires it to report and 
depreciate new and old infrastructure assets [e.g. roads, bridges, underground pipes (other than utilities), 
traffic signals, etc]. The retroactive reporting of infrastructure was subject to an extended 
implementation period and was first effective for fiscal years ended in 2006. As of September 30, 2013, 
the City had not implemented retroactive reporting of infrastructure. 
 
Changes in net position - The City's total revenues for the fiscal years ended September 30, 2013 and 
2012 were $18,201,690 and $18,608,482, respectively. The total cost of all programs and services was 
$15,057,033 and $15,926,170. The following table presents a summary of the changes in net position for 
the fiscal years ended September 30, 2013 and 2012. 
 

Changes in Net Position 
 

Governmental Activities  Business-type Activities   Total               
      2013             2012           2013             2012              2013             2012       

Revenues 
Program Revenues 
     Charges for services  $    892,175        893,524    7,010,351       7,499,264      7,902,526     8,392,788 
     Operating Grants and 
          Contributions        414,989        108,143       105,686          185,965         520,675         294,108 
     Capital Grants 
          And contributions                  1,621,836     2,272,793                  -                      -       1,621,836     2,272,793 
General Revenues   
     Property Taxes      3,989,866     3,928,370                  -                      -      3,989,866      3,928,370 
     Franchise Taxes         166,565        157,727                  -                      -         166,565         157,727 
     Intergovernmental Revenues     3,022,351     2,936,882                  -                      -      3,022,351      2,936,882   
     Other general revenues                     509,166        622,662         468,705             3,152        977,871         625,814 
          Total revenues              $ 10,616,948   10,920,101     7,584,742      7,688,381    18,201,690   18,608,482  
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For the Year Ended September 30, 2013 

 
Governmental Activities  Business-type Activities   Total               
      2013             2012           2013             2012              2013             2012       

Program Expenses 
     General Government  $ 2,300,198     2,302,868                  -                     -     2,300,198       2,302,868 
     Public Safety      5,610,620     5,888,087                  -                     -     5,610,620       5,888,087 
     Public Works          700,346     1,330,505                  -                    -         700,346       1,330,505 
     Culture & Recreation         336,574        184,441                  -                     -        336,574          184,441 
     Capital Outlay                    -                   -                   -                     -                   -                      - 
     Debt Service-interest                        294,560        372,814                   -                     -        294,560          372,814 
     Water and Sewer Fund                                 -                   -    4,787,422       4,438,274     4,787,422       4,438,274 
     Solid waste                                  -                   -    1,027,313      1,344,836      1,027,313       1,409,181 
          Total expenses              $ 9,242,298    10,078,015    5,814,735       5,847,455   15,057,033     15,926,170  
Increase in net position              $ 1,374,650         841,386    1,770,007       1,840,926     3,144,657       1,982,521  
 
 
Governmental activities  
 
The following table presents the cost of major City functional activities: general government, public 
safety, public works, culture and recreation, urban and economic development, capital outlay, and debt 
service-interest. The table also shows each function's net cost (total cost less charges for services 
generated by the activities and intergovernmental aid provided for specific programs). The net cost 
shows the financial burden that was placed on the State and City's taxpayers by each of these functions.  

 
                                             Governmental Activities                                      

                2013                                  2012                     
 Total Cost Net Cost  Total Cost        Net Cost 
of Services      of Services  of Services      of Services   

Program Expenses 
General Government $ 2,300,198     (   186,082)       2,302,868              51,058    

      Public Safety     5,610,620     (4,795,736)     5,888,087       (4,967,553)     
      Public Works         700,346     (   700,346)     1,330,505       (1,330,505)     
      Culture & Recreation       336,574      (  336,574)        184,441        (  184,441)    
      Capital Outlay                   -                     -                      -                       - 
      Debt Service-interest           294,560      (  294,560)      372,814       (   372,814) 
           Total expenses             $  9,242,298     (6,313,298)    10,211,254       (7,942,898)     
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
For the Year Ended September 30, 2013 

 
Business-type activities  
 
The City's business-type activities generated a change in net position of $1,770,007 during the fiscal 
year ending September 30, 2013. This represents a decrease of approximately $70,919 from the change 
during the previous year. The factors contributing to this decrease included: 
 
• The Water and Sewer Fund had a decrease in service charges of approximately $488,913. 
 
• The Water and Sewer Fund had a decrease in grant revenues of approximately $ 80,279 . 
 
• The City had an increase in other revenues of approximately $ 352,057. 

 
As noted earlier, the City uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-
related legal requirements. 
 
As the City completed the year, its governmental funds reported a combined fund balance of 
$4,511,450, compared to $4,076,251 in the prior year. Activities within the general fund contributed to 
approximately 38.54% in 2013 and 30.02% in 2012 of the fund balances, respectively. Other items that 
influenced the fund balances are as follows: 
 
• The City received approximately $ 2.1 million in grant revenues, which represents a decrease of 
approximately 4.75 % from the previous year. 
 
General Fund Budgetary Highlights  
 
Over the course of the year, adjustments made in the budget were minor. The changes were due to the 
following: 1) amendments were made shortly after the beginning of the year, 2) the Council made 
changes in the middle of the year to prevent shortages from the addition or extension of service 
contracts, or 3) the Council approved several increases in appropriations to prevent budget overruns and 
to recognize receipt of funds not expected. 
 
With these adjustments, the actual expenditures were $ 8,665,453 compared to $ 9,184,995 in the 
budget. A schedule showing the original and final budget amounts compared to the City's actual 
financial activity for the General Fund is provided on pages 54-58 of this report as required 
supplementary information. 
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CITY OF GAUTIER, MISSISSIPPI 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

For the Year Ended September 30, 2013 
 

 
CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION  
 
Capital Assets - The City's total capital assets for 2013 and 2012 were $46,424,807 and $45,554,857, 
respectively. The City mainly invested in infrastructure improvements for the area. The following table 
presents a summary of the City's capital net assets for the fiscal years ended September 30, 2013 and 
2012. 
 

Capital Assets at Year End (Net of Depreciation) 
 

Governmental Activities  Business-type Activities   Total               
      2013             2012           2013             2012              2013              2012       

Land    $    798,104        798,104    1,190,870       1,188,570      1,988,974      1,986,674  
Construction in progress     5,026,850     3,021,932                   -                     -      5,026,850      3,021,932 
Buildings and improvements     2,282,268     2,341,687    1,728,595       1,792,891      4,010,863      4,134,578  
Machinery and Equipment     3,103,038     3,519,356       122,670          308,151      3,225,708      3,827,507  
Utility System                     -                   -  28,018,427     28,379,922    28,018,427    28,379,922 
Infrastructure                   4,153,985     4,204,244                                                 4,153,985      4,204,244 

Total               $15,364,245   13,885,323   31,060,562    31,669,534    46,424,807    45,554,857  
 
 
Major projects over the past three years have included: 
 

           Completed 
 Through 

         September 30,       Remaining 
                2013               Commitment  

 
Government and business-type activities: 
 
Allen Road Water and Sewer Expansion             $    451,377                           - 

Lift Station Upgrade        2,503,100          -  

Water Improvements - Old Spanish Trail     2,527,999                     -  

Highway 90/57 Sewer System Expansion                6,631,715                           -   
Streetscape Project       3,021,932     2,409,196              
Martin Bluff Road Improvements        239,011 

          
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

- 14 - 
Page 41 of 255



CITY OF GAUTIER, MISSISSIPPI 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

For the Year Ended September 30, 2013 
 
 
Debt Administration At September 30, 2013, the City had $26,150,272 in general obligation bonds and 
other long-term debt outstanding, of which $ 2,787,949 is due within one year. 
 

Outstanding Debt at Year-End 
 
 

Governmental Activities  Business-type Activities   Total                
      2013             2012           2013             2012              2013             2012       

General Obligation Bonds (backed 
    by the City)   $ 6,250,000    6,515,000   11,415,000     9,185,000    17,665,000     15,700,000  
Revenue Bonds and Notes (backed 
    by specific tax and fee revenues)    2,076,968    2,714,341     6,107,763     6,554,187      8,784,731       9,268,528 
Compensated absences                     271,978        309,109          28,563          34,358        300,541          343,467 

Total               $  8,598,946     9,538,450   17,551,326   15,773,545   26,150,272     25,311,995  
 
 
More detailed information about the City's long-term liabilities is presented in Note 3 to the financial 
statements. 
 
ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'S BUDGETS AND RATES  
 
On August 29, 2005, the City was severely impacted by Hurricane Katrina. The City is in the continuing 
process of rebuilding, which will be the case for some years. The City has used federal grants, insurance 
reimbursements and loans to help with these rebuilding costs. 
 
The City's elected and appointed officials considered many factors when setting the fiscal-year 2013 
budget, tax rates, and fees to be charged for business-type activities. The local economy continues its 
slow recovery from the loss of several major industries and revenues lost due to Hurricane Katrina, but 
the prospects for new industries are improving. This is evidenced by the Council utilizing the City’s 
financial leverage in issuing seven million dollars of General Obligation Bonds last year for a New 
Police Station and other improvements to provide for a platform for continuing economic development, 
and the issuance in the previous Fiscal Year of a Refunding Bond saving the City anticipated interest 
charges. Also in September of 2012, the City adopted its first ever five year strategic plan. The City also 
privatized its public works resulting in savings of hundreds of thousands of dollars. 
 
 
CONTACTING THE CITY'S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT  
 
This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, investors, and creditors 
with a general overview of the City's finances and to show the City's accountability for the money it 
receives. If there are any questions about this report or needed additional financial information, contact 
the Comptroller's Office at 3330 Hwy 90, Gautier, Mississippi or tmontgomery@gautier-ms.gov. 
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BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

For the Year Ended September 30, 2013 
 
The basic financial statements include integrated sets of financial statements as required 
by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board. The sets of statements include: 
 
• Government-wide financial statements  
 
• Fund financial statements: 
 

- Governmental funds  
 
- Proprietary (enterprise) funds  
 

In addition, the notes to the financial statements are included to provide information that 
is essential to a user's understanding of the basic financial statements. 
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GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
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CITY OF GAUTIER, MISSISSIPPI 

GOVERNMENT-WIDE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 
September 30, 2013 

 
Governmental   Business-type  
   Activities         Activities            Total          
 

ASSETS  
   Cash and cash equivalents    $ 1,899,761      1,264,341        3,164,102 
   Restricted cash and cash equivalents    1,957,364      5,103,374        7,060,738 
   Receivables, net          654,325        659,302       1,313,627 
   Internal Balances                -            -                          - 
   Capital assets: 
       Land & Construction in Progress     5,824,954     1,190,870        7,015,824 
       Other capital assets, net of  

Depreciation       9,539,291   29,869,692     39,408,983 
Total capital assets    15,364,245   31,060,562     46,424,807  

Total assets    19,875,695   38,087,579     57,963,274  
 

LIABILITIES  
Accounts payable            96,970          11,120          108,090 
Accrued Expenses & Interest Payable         80,386                          80,386 
Compensated absences, current                    35,157               994            36,151 
Customer deposits     -         556,195          556,195 
Long-term liabilities: 
   Due within one year          979,270     1,808,679       2,787,949 
   Due in more than one year      7,584,519   15,741,653     23,326,172 

Total liabilities      8,776,302   18,118,641     26,894,943 
 
NET POSITION  
Investment in capital assets (net of  

related debt)       6,800,456  13,510,231     20,310,687 
Restricted : 
    Debt service              2,460    3,620,956       3,623,416 
    Bond contingency fund      2,566,037       946,561       3,512,598 
Unrestricted         1,730,440    1,891,190       3,621,630 
Total net position              $11,099,393  19,968,938     31,068,331  
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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CITY OF GAUTIER, MISSISSIPPI 
GOVERNMENT-WIDE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

For the Year Ended September 30, 2013 
 

                      Net (expense) revenue and changes in net 
                                                                        Program Revenue                                  Assets                                  
                                                                              Operating       Capital Grants  

                                                                      Charges for     Grants and             and        Governmental    Business-type      
     Expenses          Service      Contributions    Contributions             Activities        Activities       Total 
                                        
Government Activities: 
     General Government $ 2,300,198           77,291            414,989           1,621,836                 (186,082)                      -        (186,082) 
       Public Safety     5,610,620         814,884                -            -            (4,795,736)    -       (4,795,736 
       Public Works        700,346                    -                -            -            (   700,346)    -       (   700,346) 
       Culture and Recreation       336,574                    -                -            -              (  336,574)    -        (  336,574) 
       Debt service – interest       294,560                    -                                                              (  294,560)                             (   294,560) 
        Total Government  
 Activities                $ 9,242,298         892,175            414,989            1,621,836            (6,313,298)                   -       (6,313,298) 
 

 
Business-type activities: 
       Water & Sewer Fund    4,787,422      5,763,569       65,989                          -             -         1,042,136    1,042,136 
       Solid Waste     1,027,313      1,246,782             39,697                          -                            -              259,166          59,166 
          Total Business-type 
                Activities     5,814,735      7,010,351     105,686                          -                                      1,301,302    1,301,302 
 Total Primary         $15,057,033      7,902,526           520,675            1,621,836            (6,313,298)         1,301,302  (5,011,996) 
 
      General Revenues: 
      Property Taxes              3,989,866        -     3,989,866 
      Franchise Taxes                 166,565        -        166,565 
      Intergovernmental              3,022,351        -     3,022,351 
      Interest Income                     4,380                   3,599           7,979 
      Miscellaneous                 504,786               465,106       969,892 
      Transfers & Special Item 
          Transfers                 988,587             (988,587) 
          Special Item – CDL Loan 
              Forgiven                 321,803                       321,803 
 
      Total Revenues, Transfers 
                   And Special Item             8,998,338             (519,882)    8,478,456 
 
      Changes in Net Position                   2,685,040               781,420    3,466,460 
 
      Net Position, beginning                      8,231,573          19,187,518  27,419,091 
      Prior Period Adjustment                182,780                                   182,780 
 

     Net position, as restated             8,414,353          19,187,518   27,601,871 
 

      Net Position, ending         $11,099,393          19,968,938   31,068,331 
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CITY OF GAUTIER, MISSISSIPPI 
BALANCE SHEET - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

September 30, 2013 
 
 

  
               Capital   Other   Total  

          Projects            Governmental      Governmental  
General Fund              Funds                Funds                  Funds         

ASSETS  
   Current assets: 
      Cash and cash equivalents           $1,084,189                           -     815,572 1,899,761 
      Receivables, net          654,325              -                     654,325  
      Due From (To)                     -                                              -                 - 
         Total current assets      1,738,514                           -     815,572 2,554,086 
Noncurrent assets: 
      Restricted cash        -              1,957,364    -  1,957,364 
 

Total assets  $  1,738,514             1,957,364     815,572 4,511,450 
 
LIABILITIES AND FUND 
    BALANCES 
   Liabilities: 
      Accounts payable  $     73,587   14,806         8,577        96,970 
      Other accrued liabilities        80,386             -                        80,386 
      Compensated absences, 
           Current          35,157             -                        35,157  
                                                                               
 

Total liabilities      189,130   14,806         8,577     212,513  
 
   Fund balances: 
     Reserved for: 
        Debt service     -            1,942,558   -  1,942,558 
     Unreserved: 
        General fund   1,549,384             -                -  1,549,384 
        Special revenue funds   -                           -    806,995                  806,995 

Total fund balances  1,549,384            1,942,558    806,995  4,298,937 
Total liabilities and  
        fund balances           $ 1,738,514            1,957,364    815,572  4,511,450  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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CITY OF GAUTIER, MISSISSIPPI 

RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET 
TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

September 30, 2013 
 
Total governmental funds balance         $ 4,298,937 
 
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net assets are different 
because: 

 
     Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the statement  
     of activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives  
     and reported as depreciation expense. 
 

Governmental capital assets       $ 20,637,859  
Less: accumulated depreciation        ( 5,273,613) 15,364,246 
 

     
  

     Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and, therefore,  
     are not reported in the funds: 
 

Bonds and notes                   (  8,326,969) 
Compensated absences             (236,821) 
 
Net assets of governmental activities                 $ 11,099,393  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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CITY OF GAUTIER, MISSISSIPPI 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES 
IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

For the Year Ended September 30, 2013 
 

 
         Capital             Other               Total  
        Projects        Governmental    Governmental 

General Fund             Funds              Funds              Funds         
REVENUES  
     Property taxes      $ 3,878,034             -  111,832  3,989,866 
     Franchise fees            166,565             -              -     166,565 
     Fees and fines            753,453             -    61,431     814,884 
     Licenses and permits             77,291             -              -       77,291 
     Intergovernmental        2,923,368             -    98,983  3,022,351 
     Interest income               2,018      2,362                    4,380 
     Grants         1,421,439              242,909     372,476  2,036,824 
     Miscellaneous            426,903                              162,095                   588,998 
          Total revenues        9,649,071  245,271               806,817              10,701,159  
 
EXPENDITURES  
     Current: 
          General government        2,260,031      3,035    2,263,066 
          Public safety        4,847,643             -      5,489  4,853,132 
          Public works           468,396             -    92,704     561,100 
          Culture and recreation          176,426             -  160,148     336,574 
     Debt service: 
          Interest and fiscal charges          196,283  763,054              -     959,337 
     Capital outlay         1,165,708                      839,210               402,314                2,407,232 
             Total expenditures        9,114,487            1,605,299               660,655               11,380,441 
                Excess of revenues over  

       (under) expenditures          534,584               ( 1,360,028)               146,162              (   679,282) 
 
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)  
 
                              
Transfers in (out)            220,497                      733,054                 35,036                   988,587 
 
          Total other financing sources (uses)         220,497                      733,054                 35,036                   988,587 
 
               Net changes in fund balances         755,081               (     626,974)               181,198                  309,305 
 
Fund balance - beginning of year          611,524           2,569,532                 625,797              3,806,853 
 
Prior period adjustment           182,779                                                      182,779 
Fund balance - end of year      $1,549,384             1,942,558                806,995              4,298,937 

 
 
 
 

 
 
The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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CITY OF GAUTIER, MISSISSIPPI 
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, 

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 
For the Year Ended September 30, 2013 

 
 
Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds      $     309,305  
 
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different 
because: 
 
   Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the statement  
   of activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives  
   and reported as depreciation expense. Also, transfers out are not recorded. 
 

Capital outlay                    $2,407,232 
Depreciation            (928,309) 
Excess of depreciation expense over capital outlay          1,478,923 
 

   Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of  
   current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in the funds. 

 
 
Special Item – CDL Loan forgiven                          321,803 
Net Adjustments for compensated absences            (    5,558) 
Principal paid on debt                 664,778 
New loan for Command Vehicle             (   84,211)     

            
                  2,375,735 

 
    
 
Changes in net position of governmental activities      $    2,685,040  
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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CITY OF GAUTIER, MISSISSIPPI 
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION - PROPRIETARY FUNDS 

September 30, 2013 
             Total 

Water and     Solid Waste           Proprietary  
             Sewer Fund                         Fund                        Funds     

ASSETS 
   Current assets: 
      Cash and cash equivalents               $ 1,260,825               3,516                  1,264,341 
      Accounts receivable, net       659,302         -               659,302 
      Due (to) from other Funds      (103,948)             103,948                          
                                                                                                              
           Total current assets                   1,816,179           107,464            1,923,643  
 
Noncurrent assets: 
      Restricted assets: 
           Cash and cash equivalents    5,103,374          -            5,103,374 
Capital assets: 
            Land      1,190,870          -            1,190,870 
            Other capital assets,  
                net of accumulated depreciation               29,851,983              17,709           28,869,692 
            Total noncurrent assets                36,146,227              17,709           36,163,936 
                  Total assets                 37,962,406            125,173          38,087,579 
 
 
LIABILITIES 
   Current liabilities: 
      Accounts payable                       11,120                                  11,120 
      Due to Other Funds                                 -                                              - 
      Compensated absences payable              994                                994   
      Bonds and notes payable    1,808,679           -            1,808,679 
      Payable from restricted assets: 
      Customer deposits                     556,195                        -                556,195 
          Total current liabilities                 2,376,988                                      -             2,376,988 
Noncurrent liabilities: 
      Compensated absences                       27,568                         -                 27,568 
      Bonds and notes payable               15,714,084                                       -          15,714,084 
         Total noncurrent liabilities                15,741,652                          -          15,741,652  

Total liabilities                18,118,640                                       -          18,118,640 
 

NET POSITION 
      Invested in capital assets,  
          net of related debt                13,492,522                17,709          13,510,231 
      Restricted: 
          Debt service                  3,620,956                                       -               3,620,956 
          Bond contingency fund                    946,561                          -               946,561 
      Unrestricted                   1,783,726              107,464            1,891,190 

Total net position             $ 19,843,765              125,173             19,968,938 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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CITY OF GAUTIER, MISSISSIPPI 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION 

PROPRIETARY FUNDS 
For the Year Ended September 30, 2013 

 
Total 

Water and      Solid Waste            Proprietary 
             Sewer    Fund          Fund                       Funds       

 
OPERATING REVENUES 
      Charges for services                 $ 5,763,569        1,246,782            7,010,351 
      Grants                          65,989             39,697               105,686 
      Other                        465,106                       -               465,106 
 
            Total operating revenues                   6,294,664        1,286,479            7,581,143 
 
OPERATING EXPENSES 
       Personnel services                        314,372                7,660                    322,032 
       Wastewater treatment                                  1,235,736                        -            1,235,736 
       Waste collections and disposals                    -         1,001,770            1,001,770 
        Utilities                        198,196                        -  198,196 
        Supplies                        142,028                        -  142,028 
        Maintenance and repairs                        37,576                        -                 37,576 
        Depreciation           660,721                9,621               670,342 
        Other services and charges      1,876,734                8,262            1,884,996 
 
              Total operating expenses      4,465,363                      1,027,313            5,492,676  
 
                 Operating income (loss)                   1,829,301           259,166            2,088,467 
 
NONOPERATING REVENUES 
        (EXPENSES) 
        Interest income             3,599            -                   3,599 
        Interest expense       (322,059)               -             (322,059) 
 
             Net nonoperating revenues  
                (expenses)                     (318,460)                         -              (318,460) 
 
CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS & TRANSFERS 
 
Transfer In (Out)        (708,860)        ( 279,727)                   (988,587) 
 
 
Changes in net position                                    801,981        (    20,561)               781,420 
Net position - beginning of year                19,041,784                         145,734          19,187,518 
                                                                                             
Net position - end of year               $ 19,843,765            125,173          19,968,938 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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CITY OF GAUTIER, MISSISSIPPI 
RECONCILIATION OF THE PROPRIETARY FUNDS NET POSITION 

TO THE GOVERNMENT-WIDE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 
September 30, 2013 

 
Total Proprietary Fund net position                 $19,968,938 
 

 
    Differences in Interfund Balances                                   0 
             
Net assets of proprietary activities on government-wide statement of net position           $19,968,938  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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CITY OF GAUTIER, MISSISSIPPI 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

PROPRIETARY FUNDS 
For the Year Ended September 30, 2013 

 
 

Total 
Water and Sewer  Solid Waste           Proprietary 
           Fund                      Fund                      Funds         
 

Cash flows from operating activities: 
      Cash received from customers        $ 5,623,417     1,211,802  6,835,219 
      Cash received from grants                65,990          39,697                  105,687 
      Payments for goods and services         (3,419,658)     (1,010,132)               (4,429,790) 
      Payments to employees          (   320,167)      (      7,660)                     (   327,827) 
      Other receipts                511,178                     -                  511,178 
 
            Net cash provided (used) in operating 
                Activities            2,460,760         233,707               2,694,467 
 
Cash flows from noncapital financing activities: 
      Decrease in customer Deposits & other  

activities             (  46,937)                   -              (    46,937) 
 
Net cash provided (used) by noncapital 
                financing activities            (   46,937)                    -              (    46,937) 
 
Cash flows from capital and related financing 
       activities: 
       Increase in Capital Debt           3,500,000       -               3,500,000 
       Transfers          (    708,860)     ( 279,627)             (   988,487) 
       Purchase and construction of capital assets        (    61,370)       -             (     61,370) 
       Principal paid on capital debt         (1,716,425)       -             (1,716,425) 
       Interest paid on capital debt                         (322,059)                    -                (322,059) 
       Investments in restricted cash         (3,772,555)                    -             (3,772,555) 
 
          Net cash used in capital and related financing 
                Activities          (3,081,269)     (279,627)             (3,360,896) 
 
Cash flows from investing activities: 
 
       Interest received                   3,599                    -                      3,599  
 
          Net cash provided by investing activities                3,599                    -                      3,599 
 
        Net change in cash and cash equivalents           (663,847)    (    45,920)                        (709,767) 
        Cash and cash equivalents: 
 
          Beginning of the year           1,924,672                       49,436               1,974,108 
          End of the year                       $1,260,825                          3,516               1,264,341 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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CITY OF GAUTIER, MISSISSIPPI 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

PROPRIETARY FUNDS 
For the Year Ended September 30, 2013 

 
 
 

Water and Solid Waste 
             Sewer Fund                Fund                          Total            

  
 
Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net 
     cash provided by (used in) operating activities 
 
Operating income (loss)                $ 1,829,301  259,166   2,088,467 
Adjustments to reconcile operating (income) loss 
to net cash 
       Depreciation expense         660,721      9,621      670,342 
        Increase (Decrease) in current assets: 

Accounts receivable & prepaids                    (14,933)   (35,080)      (50,013) 
 

(Increase) Decrease in current liabilities: 
 
Accounts payable               871                                871  
Other liabilities        (15,200)              -     (15,200)  
                                                                                                             
Net cash provided by (used in) operating  
        Activities                $ 2,460,760               233,707               2,694,467  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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CITY OF GAUTIER, MISSISSIPPI 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

September 30, 2013 
 

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 
The City of Gautier, Mississippi was incorporated on June 17, 1986. The City operates under a Council- 
Manager form of government described under Title 21, Chapter 9, of the Mississippi Code of 1972. The 
City provides the following services, as authorized by its charter: public safety, public works, public 
health and welfare, culture, recreation and water, sewer and gas system. 

 
The City's financial statements are prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles 
(GAAP). GAAP includes all relevant Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) 
pronouncements. In the government-wide financial statements and the fund financial statements for the 
proprietary funds, Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) pronouncements and Accounting 
Principles Board (APB) opinions issued on or before November 30, 1989, have been applied unless those 
pronouncements conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements, in which case, GASB prevails. For 
enterprise funds, GASB Statement Nos. 20 and 34 provide the City with the option of electing to apply 
FASB pronouncements issued after that date. The City has chosen not to apply those pronouncements. 
The accounting and reporting framework and the more significant accounting policies are discussed in 
subsequent subsections of this Note. The City implemented the general provisions of GASB Statement 
Nos. 33 and 34 during fiscal year ended September 30, 2004. 

 
A. Financial Reporting Entity 
 
These financial statements present the City (the primary government) only. The criteria for including 
organizations as component units within the City's reporting entity, as set forth in Section 2100 of GASB's 
Codification of Governmental Accounting and Financial Reporting Standards, include whether: 

 
-the organization is legally separate (can sue and be sued in their own name) 
-the City holds the corporate powers of the organization 
-the City appoints a voting majority of the organization's board 
-the City is able to impose its will on the organization 
-the organization has the potential to impose a financial benefit/burden on the City  
-there is fiscal dependency by the organization on the City 
 

Based on the aforementioned criteria, the City of Gautier has no component units. 
 

B. Basic Financial Statements - Government-wide statements 
 
The City's basic financial statements include both government-wide (reporting the City as a whole) and 
fund financial statements. Both the government-wide and fund financial statements categorize primary 
activities as either governmental or business-type. The City's police and fire protection, parks, recreation, 
public works, and general administrative services are classified as governmental activities. The City's 
water and sewer system and solid waste management services are classified as business-type activities. 
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CITY OF GAUTIER, MISSISSIPPI 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

September 30, 2013 
 

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)  
 
In the Government-Wide Statement of Net Assets, both the governmental and business-type activities 
columns are presented on a consolidated basis and are reported on a full accrual, economic resource 
basis, which recognizes all long-term assets and receivables as well as long-term debt and obligations. 
The City's net assets are reported in three parts: invested in capital assets, net of related debt; restricted 
net assets; and unrestricted net assets. The City first utilizes restricted resources to finance qualifying 
activities. 

 
The Government-Wide Statement of Activities reports both the gross and net cost of each of the City's 
functions and business-type activities (public safety, public works, culture and recreation, etc.). The 
functions are also supported by general governmental revenues (property, sales and use taxes, certain 
intergovernmental revenues, fines, permits and charges, etc.). The Government-Wide Statement of 
Activities reduces gross expenses (including depreciation) by related program revenues and by operating 
and capital grants. Program revenues must be directly associated with the function (police, public works, 
community and youth services, etc.) or a business-type activity. Operating grants include operating-
specific and discretionary (either operating or capital) grants, while the capital grants column reflects 
capital- specific grants. 

 
The net costs (by function or business-type activity) are normally covered by general revenue (property, 
sales or gas taxes, intergovernmental revenues, interest income, etc). 

 
The City does not allocate indirect costs. An administrative service fee is charged by the General Fund 
to the Water and Sewer Fund to recover the direct costs of General Fund services provided (finance, 
personnel, purchasing, legal, technology management, etc.). 

 
This government-wide focus is more on the sustainability of the City as an entity and the change in the 
City's net assets resulting from the current year's activities. 
 
C. Basic Financial Statements - Fund Financial Statements 
 
The financial transactions of the City are reported in individual funds in the fund financial statements. 
Each fund is accounted for by providing a separate set of self-balancing accounts that comprise its 
assets, liabilities, reserves, fund equity, revenues and expenditures/expenses. The various funds are 
reported by genetic classification within the financial statements. 
 
Governmental Funds: 

 
The focus of governmental fund measurement (in the fund statements) is upon determination of financial 
position and changes in financial position (sources, uses, and balances of financial resources) rather than 
upon net income. The following is a description of the governmental funds of the City:  
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NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
September 30, 2013 

 
NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)  
 

1. The General Fund is the general operating fund of the City. It is used to account for all 
     financial resources except those required to be accounted for in another fund. 
 
2. Special revenue funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources  

that are legally restricted to expenditures for specified purposes. These funds include: Fire 
Protection Fund, Recreation Fund, Tideland Grant Fund, etc. 

 
3. Debt service funds are used to account for the accumulation of funds for the periodic payment 
    of principal and interest on general long-term debt. 

 
4. Capital projects funds are used to account for financial resources to be used for the acquisition 
    or construction of major capital facilities (other than those financed by business- 
    type/proprietary funds). The City had capital projects funds during the year ended 
    September 30, 2013. 

 
Proprietary Funds: 

 
The focus of proprietary fund measurement is upon determination of operating income, changes in net 
assets, financial position, and cash flows. The generally accepted accounting principles applicable are 
those similar to businesses in the private sector. The following is a description of the proprietary funds 
of the City. 

 
1. Enterprise funds are used to account for operations for which a fee is charged to external users 
    for goods or services and the activity (a) is financed with debt that is solely secured by a 
    pledge of the net revenues, (b) has third party requirements that the cost of providing services, 
    including capital costs, be recovered with fees and charges, or (c) establishes fees and charges 
    based on a pricing policy designed to recover similar costs. These funds include: Water and 
    Sewer System Fund, Solid Waste Fund and related projects. 

 
D. Basis of Accounting 
 
Basis of accounting refers to the point at which revenues or expenditures/expenses are recognized in the 
accounts and reported in the financial statements. It relates to the timing of the measurements made 
regardless of the measurement focus applied. 

 
Accrual: 

 
Both governmental and business-type activities in the government-wide financial statements and the 
proprietary fund financial statements are presented on the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are 
recognized when earned, and expenses are recognized when incurred. 
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NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 
Modified Accrual: 

 
The governmental funds financial statements are presented on the modified accrual basis of accounting. 

 
Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recorded when susceptible to accrual; i.e., 
both measurable and available. "Available" means collectible within the current period or within 60 days 
after year end. Expenditures are generally recognized under the modified accrual basis of accounting 
when the related liability is incurred. The exception to this general rule is that principal and interest on 
general obligation long-term debt, if any, is recognized when due. 

 
E. Financial Statement Amounts 
 
Cash and Cash Equivalents: 

 
The City has defined cash and cash equivalents to include cash on hand, demand deposits, and cash with 
fiscal agents. Additionally, each fund's equity in the City's investment pool is treated as a cash 
equivalent because the funds can deposit or effectively withdraw cash at any time without prior notice or 
penalty. 

 
Capital Assets: 

 
Capital assets purchased or acquired with an original cost of $5,000 or more are reported at historical 
cost or estimated historical cost. Contributed assets are reported at fair value as of the date received. 
Additions, improvements and other capital outlays that significantly extend the useful life of an asset are 
capitalized. 

 
Other costs incurred for repairs and maintenance are expensed as incurred. Depreciation on all assets is 
provided on the straight-line basis over the following estimated useful lives: 

 
Buildings 20-50 years Water and sewer system 30-35 years Machinery and equipment 7-10 years 
Improvements 30-35 years Other infrastructures 10-60 years Vehicles 5 years GASB Statement No. 34 
required the City to report and depreciate new infrastructure assets beginning in 2004. Infrastructure 
assets include roads, bridges, underground pipe (other than related to utilities), traffic signals, etc. These 
infrastructure assets are the largest asset class of the City. Neither their historical cost nor related 
depreciation has historically been reported in the financial statements. The retroactive reporting of 
infrastructure was subject to an extended implementation period and was first effective for fiscal years 
ended in 2006. As of the year ending September 30, 2012, the City has not implemented retroactive 
infrastructure reporting. The City implemented the general provisions of GASB No. 34 during 2004. 
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NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

September 30, 2013 
 
NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 
Revenues: 

 
Substantially all governmental fund revenues are accrued. Property taxes are billed and collected within 
the same period in which the taxes are levied. Subsidies and grants to proprietary funds, which finance 
either capital or current operations, are reported as non-operating revenue based on GASB Statement 
No. 33. In applying GASB Statement No. 33 to grant revenues, the provider recognizes liabilities and 
expenses, and the recipient recognizes receivables and revenues when the applicable eligibility 
requirements, including time requirements, are met. Resources transmitted before the eligibility 
requirements are met are reported as advances by the provider and deferred revenue by the recipient. 

 
Expenditures: 

 
Expenditures are recognized when the related fund liability is incurred. 

 
Compensated Absences: 

 
The City's policy allows employees to accumulate unused sick leave on an unlimited basis and vacation 
leave up to two years generally. Upon termination, pursuant to State Law, the City may pay up to 30 
days of accumulated vacation ; the balance is credited to the employee’s public retirement (PERS) 
account. 

 
Sick leave is not paid upon termination. The City accrues accumulated unpaid vacation leave at the end 
of the fiscal year. The noncurrent portion (the amount estimated to be used in subsequent fiscal years) 
for governmental funds is maintained separately and represents a reconciling item between the fund and 
government-wide presentations. 

 
Interfund Activity: 

 
Interfund activity consists of loans, services provided, reimbursements or transfers. Loans are reported 
as interfund receivables and payables, as appropriate, and are subject to elimination upon consolidation. 

 
Services provided, deemed to be at market or near market rates, are treated as revenues and 
expenditures/expenses. Reimbursements are when one fund incurs a cost, charges the appropriate 
benefiting fund, and reduces its related cost as a reimbursement. All other interfund transactions are 
treated as transfers. Transfers between governmental and proprietary funds are netted as part of the 
reconciliation to the government-wide financial statements. 

 
By its nature as a local government unit, the City is subject to various federal, state, and local laws and 
contractual regulations. An analysis of the City's compliance with significant laws and regulations and 
demonstration of its stewardship over City resources follows. 
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NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

September 30, 2013 
 
NOTE 2. STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY  
 
A. Fund Accounting Requirements 
 
The City complies with all state and local laws and regulations requiring the use of separate funds. The 
legally-required funds used by the City include the following: 

 
Fund:                    Required By:                   

     
CDBG Fund     Grant Agreement 
Water & Sewer Fund    Trust Indenture 
Solid Waste Fund    State Law  
 

B. Deposits and Investments - Laws and Regulations  
 
State law requires that all deposits in excess of Federal Depository Insurance Corporation (FDIC) 
insurance limits be 105% collateralized by U.S. Government obligations or by state municipal 
obligations that have a fair value of not less than the principal amount of the deposits. The collateral for 
public entities' deposits in financial institutions are held in the name of the State Treasurer under a 
program established by the Mississippi State Legislature and is governed by Section 27-105-5 Miss. 
Code Ann. (1972). Under this program, the entity's funds are protected through a collateral pool 
administered by the State Treasurer. Financial institutions holding deposits of public funds must pledge 
securities as collateral against those deposits. In the event of failure of a financial institution, securities 
pledged by that institution would be liquidated by the State Treasurer to replace the public deposits not 
covered by the FDIC. The City's deposits were fully insured or collateralized as required by statute at 
September 30, 2013. At year-end, the respective bank balances totaled $7,002,772. There were no 
certificates of deposit outstanding at September 30, 2013. 

 
C, Revenue Restrictions 
 
The City has various restrictions placed over certain revenue sources from state or local requirements. 
The primary restricted revenue sources include: 

 
Revenue Source:                                Legal Restrictions in Use:                    
Sales Tax      Sewer Rehabilitation Notes 
Gasoline Excise & Commercial Vehicle Tax  Street and Road Purposes 
Water and Sewer Revenue    Debt Service and Utility Operations 
Grant Program Expenditures    Grant Agreements 
Ad Valorem Tax     Debt Service 
 

For the year ended September 30, 2013 the City complied, in all material respects, with these revenue 
restrictions. 
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NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
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NOTE 2. STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY (continued) 
 
D. Debt Restrictions and Covenants 
 
General obligation debt represents direct obligations issued on a pledge of the general taxing power of 
the City for the payment of its debt obligations. 
 
NOTE 3. DETAIL NOTES ON TRANSACTION CLASSES/ACCOUNTS 
 

A. Cash and Investments 
 
The City deposits funds in financial institutions selected by the City's Councilmen in accordance with 
Mississippi statutes. Allocation of the resulting balance is accomplished with inter-bank transfers. 
Approved city depositories for the calendar years 2012-2013 were as follows: 
 

Allocation 
            Percentage     

Hancock Bank                52% 
Merchant and Marine Bank              38% 
Peoples Bank                           10%          

               100%          
 
By using this multiple financial institution collateral pool, all of the City's deposits at September 30, 
2012, fall into the credit risk category of "Insured or collateralized with securities held by the entity or 
its agent in the entity's name." 
 
Deposits at September 30, 2013, (including restricted deposits) were as follows: 
 

         
Bank Balances        

Pooled deposits: 
Cash and cash equivalents       $   3,723,462              

Non-pooled deposits: 
Cash and cash equivalents: 
 Capital Improvement Bond Fund          1,954,904 

Debt Service Funds                     1,192,920     
Contingency Fund                          484,742   
MS Development Loans                    2,868,812 
                    
             

            $ 10,224,840             
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NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

September 30, 2013 
 

NOTE 3. DETAIL NOTES ON TRANSACTION CLASSES/ACCOUNTS (continued) 
 
B. Restricted Cash 
 
The amounts reported as restricted assets are cash and accrued interest held by the trustee bank on behalf 
of the various public trusts (authorities) related to their required note payable accounts and amounts held 
in trust for customer utility meter deposits. 
 
The restricted assets as of September 30, 2013, were as follows: 
 

Cash Including 
         Types of Restricted Assets                       Time Deposits 
Capital Improvement Bond Fund    $  1,954,904 
Meter Deposit Fund             561,359 
Bond Contingency Funds            757,090 
Series 2012 Utility System Refunding Bond          820,573 
Series 2013 Bond Fund         2,964,352 
2008 MS Development Loan                2,460 
                  

$  7,060,738 
 
C. Accounts Receivable 

 
Accounts receivable at September 30, 2013, consisted of the following: 
 

Allowance for 
Accounts   Uncollectible         Net Accounts 

           Receivable            Accounts               Receivable      
Governmental activities: 
General Fund: 
     Ad valorem taxes     $   63,112  -    63,112 
     Municipal court     6,598,499      6,341,157  257,342 
     Sales tax         283,622  -  283,622 
     Grants           50,249  -               50,249 
          Total General Fund               6,995,482       6,341,157              654,325 
 
Business-type activities: 
Enterprise Fund: 
     Water and sewer collections               2,541,852            1,882,550             659,302 
Total business-type activities                2,541,852      1,882,550             659,302 
Total government-wide activities            $ 9,537,334            8,223,707          1,313,627 
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NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30, 2013

NOTE 3. DETAIL NOTES ON TRANSACTION CLASSES/ACCOUNTS (continued)

D. Capital Assets

Capital assets have not been audited.
Capital assset activity for the year ended September 30, 2013, was as follows:

Primary Government
Beginning Ending
Balance Additions Reductions Balance

Governmental Activities:
   Capital Assets not being Depreciated:
      Land 798,104 798,104
      Construction in Progress 3,021,932 2,004,918 5,026,850
        Total capital assets not being depreciated 3,820,036 2,004,918 0 5,824,954
Capital assets being depreciated:
      Buildings & Improvements 2,841,253 22,400 2,863,653
      Machinery & Equipment 7,250,750 343,064 7,593,814
      Infrastructure 4,318,588 36,850 4,355,438
        Total capital assets being depreciated 14,410,591 402,314 0 14,812,905
Less accumulated depreciation for:
      Buildings & improvements (499,566) (81,819) (581,385)
      Machinery & Equipment (3,731,394) (759,382) (4,490,776)
      Infrastructure (114,344) (87,109) (201,453)
        Total accumulated depreciation (4,345,304) (928,310) 0 (5,273,614)
Total Capital assets being depreciated, net 10,065,287 -525,996 0 9,539,291
Total governmental activities capital assets, net 13,885,323 1,478,922 0 15,364,245

Business-type Activities:
   Capital Assets not being Depreciated:
      Land & Easements 1,188,570 2,300 1,190,870
      Construction in Progress 0 0
        Total capital assets not being depreciated 1,188,570 2,300 0 1,190,870
Capital assets being depreciated:
      Buildings & improvements 2,223,960 2,223,960
      Machinery & Equipment 1,897,337 59,070 1,956,407
      Infrastructure 42,123,637 42,123,637
        Total capital assets being depreciated 46,244,934 59,070 0 46,304,004
Less accumulated depreciation for:
      Buildings & improvements (431,069) (64,296) (495,365)
      Machinery & Equipment (1,589,186) (244,551) (1,833,737)
      Utility System (13,743,715) (361,495) (14,105,210)
        Total accumulated depreciation (15,763,970) (670,342) 0 (16,434,312)
Total Capital assets being depreciated, net 30,480,964 (611,272) 0 29,869,692
Total business-type activities capital assets, net 31,669,534 (608,972) 0 31,060,562

Primary Government
       Total capital assets, net 45,554,857 869,950 0 46,424,807
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                                        CITY OF GAUTIER, MISSISSIPPI 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

September 30, 2013 
 
NOTE 3. DETAIL NOTES ON TRANSACTION CLASSES/ACCOUNTS (continued) 
 
A summary of general fixed assets transactions for the year ended September 30, 2013, follows: 
 

Expended 
  through 

         September 30,  Remaining 
               2013                        Commitment   

 
 
 
Government Activities 
 

Construction in Progress at 09-30-13               5,026,850                   2,409,196 
  
 Additions to Construction in Progress   2,004,918  
 Machinery & equipment purchased                  343,064 
 Infrastructure added                      36,850 
 Building Improvement                     22,400 
 Total                   2,407,232 
 
Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs for the year ended September 30, 2013, as 
follows: 

Governmental activities: 
General government        $     928,310 

 
Business-type activities: 

Water and Sewer Fund       $     660,721 
Solid Waste Fund                   9,621 
Total business-type activities depreciation expense    $     670,342 
 

E. Accounts Payable 
Payables are composed of amounts due to vendors within 60 days of year end and accrued 
salaries and benefits. 
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CITY OF GAUTIER, MISSISSIPPI 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

September 30, 2013 
 
NOTE 3. DETAIL NOTES ON TRANSACTION CLASSES/ACCOUNTS (continued) 
 
F. Long-Term Debt 
 
The City's long-term debt is segregated between the amounts to be repaid from governmental activities 
and amounts to be repaid from business-type activities. Long-term liability activity for the year ended 
September 30, 2013, is shown below: 

       Amounts 
Beginning       Ending    Due Within 

                          Balance   Additions Reductions       Balance     One Year       
Governmental activities: 
   Bonds and notes payable           $ 9,229,340      84,211             986,583     8,326,968      979,270 
   Compensated absences                 309,110                              37,132        271,978        35,157 
      Total governmental activities 
          long-term liabilities           $ 9,538,450            84,211   1,023,715     8,598,946   1,014,427 
 
Business-type activities: 
   Water and sewer debt          $15,739,188      3,500,000            1,716,425   17,522,763   1,808,679 
   Compensated absences                   34,358                                 5,795          28,563             994 
      Total business-type activities 
          long-term liabilities          $15,773,546      3,500,000            1,722,220   17,551,326   1,809,673 
 
Description of Debt  
 
At September 30, 2013, notes payable consisted of the following individual issues: 
 

General Long- 
  Term Debt 

Governmental activities: 
     General obligation bonds and notes: 
        General Obligation Katrina Refunding Bond Series 2010; bearing interest at 
           3.45%, maturing March 2020           $ 1,735,000 
        General Obligation Bond Series 2010; Capital Improvements; Maturing  
          August, 2030; bearing interest at 3.13%            6,250,000 
Police Court package Loan; 2.60% interest; maturing, May, 2015; annual payments 
        Of $ 73,040 until paid                  117,582 
Police Vehicles Loan; 2.920% interest; maturing December, 2013; annual payments 
        Of $ $ 123,243 until paid                 140,175 
Command Vehicle Loan; 1.730% interest; maturing July, 2018; annual payments of 
         $ 17,747 until paid                    84,211 
Total general obligation bonds and notes             8,326,968 
 
Compensated absences                  271,978 
     Less current portion of long-term debt                      (1,014,427) 
      
Total governmental activities long-term debt       $    7,584,519 
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September 30, 2013 
 

NOTE 3. DETAIL NOTES ON TRANSACTION CLASSES/ACCOUNTS (continued) 
 
  Business-type activities: 
     Revenue Refunding Bond: 
         Series 2012 Refunding Bond, payable in semiannual installments, bearing interest at 

a variable rate, currently 4.25%, maturing September 2019, secured by utility  
system revenues          $   7,915,000 
 

     Revenue Bonds: 
        State Revolving Fund Loan, payable in monthly installments of $9,019, beginning 
            October 2006, bearing interest at 3.56%, maturing January 2026, secured by 
            utility system revenues              1,082,820 
 
        State Revolving Fund Loan, payable in monthly installments of $10,949, beginning 
            September 2006, bearing interest at 1.75%, maturing January 2026, secured by 
            utility system revenues              1,456,513 
 
         State Revolving Fund Loan, payable in monthly installments of $7,877, beginning 
            April 2006, bearing interest at 1.75%, maturing April 2025, secured by 
            utility system revenues                 990,469 
 
         State Revolving Fund Loan, payable in monthly installments of $3,765, beginning 
            November, 2009; bearing interest at 1.95%, secured by utility system revenues          615,167 
 
         State Revolving Fund Loan, payable in monthly installments of $ 2,149, beginning 
            October, 2009; bearing interest at 1.95%, secured by utility system revenues          324,006 
 
         State Revolving Fund Loan, payable in monthly installments of $ 9,665, beginning 
            December, 2009, bearing interest at 2.75%, secured by utility system revenues       1,487,575 
         Total general obligation bonds and notes          13,871,550 
 
    MS Development Bank Series 2013 Bonds Maturing 2014-2033 interest 2.00  
          to 5.00 %                           3,500,000 
    Vacuum Truck Loan, M & M Bank, $27,794 per year, Bearing Interest at 2.830%          151,213 
    Compensated absences                    28,563 
         Less current portion of long-term debt            (1,809,673) 
         Total business-type activities long-term debt                   $15,741,653  
 
Revenue Refunding Bond 
 
Utility System Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2012, were issued for the purpose of providing for the 
refunding of all maturities of the outstanding Combined Utility System Revenue Bonds, Series 2001, 
issued originally in the principal amount of $15,680,000,000 (balance of $9,185,000 as of the Series 
2012 Refunding issue date), and an additional $ 300,000 to provide for payment of Series 2012 issue 
costs, all in order to accomplish debt service savings for the City. The bond is payable solely from net 
revenues from water and sewer system operation.  
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CITY OF GAUTIER, MISSISSIPPI 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

September 30, 2013 
 
 
NOTE 3. DETAIL NOTES ON TRANSACTION CLASSES/ACCOUNTS (continued) 
 
The original Series 2001 bonds were collateralized by the revenues of the water and sewer system and 
the various special funds established by the bond ordinances. The ordinances provide that the revenue of 
the system is to be used first to pay operating and maintenance expenses of the system and second to 
establish and maintain the Revenue Bond Funds. As long as the bonds were outstanding, the City agreed 
to fix and maintain rates and collect charges for the use and services of the System, which were to be at 
all times be sufficient to meet specified requirements. The balance outstanding of the Series 2012 issue 
date as of September 30, 2013 was $ 7,915,000. 
 
State Revolving Revenue Bonds are collateralized by the revenues of the water and sewer funds. The 
City executed several long-term debt agreements with the State of Mississippi Environmental Quality 
for the purpose of improving the water distribution and sewer collection systems. The City entered into 
an agreement with the Mississippi State Tax Commission, allowing the Tax Commission to withhold 
$43,424 from monthly sales tax revenues as payment for principal and interest on bonds beginning in 
fiscal year 2006. The balance outstanding on these bonds, as of September 30, 2013, was $5,956,550. 
 
Debt Maturity 
 
Debt service requirements at September 30, 2013, were as follows: 
 

            Governmental Activities                              Business-type Activities                
            Notes & Capital Leases                          Water and Sewer Bonds & Notes        
       Principal                Interest                        Principal                    Interest            

2014     703,242  276,028  1,808,679  404,048 
2015     602,331  254,782  1,801,356  379,907 

       2016-2020            2,971,395  995,711  7,881,584          1,263,822 
       2021-2026 2,355,000  688,874  3,124,609  800,062 
       2026-2030            1,695,000  169,767  2,906,535  457,391 

Total      $       8,326,968          2,385,162           17,522,763          3,305,230 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

-44- 
 

Page 72 of 255



CITY OF GAUTIER, MISSISSIPPI 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

September 30, 2013 
 
NOTE 3. DETAIL NOTES ON TRANSACTION CLASSES/ACCOUNTS (continued) 
 
G. Interfund Balances 
 
Interfund balances at September 30, 2013, consisted of the following: 
 

                                       DUE FROM:                                               
          Governmental Activities                          Business-Type Activities 

Other 
General  MS       Governmental        Water and   Solid Waste 
   Fund          Development              Funds            Sewer Fund        Fund                Total          

DUE TO:                            
Governmental activities: 
     General Fund   $             -             -                       -                      -    -           - 
     MS Development                -                        -                                        -            
     Other Governmental Funds   -             -                       -         -                                                   
 
Business-type Activities: 
     Water and Sewer Fund    -             -                       -                103,948         (103,948)           - 
     Solid Waste Fund Total                               -                        -                       -                                                -                    -   
            Total   $              -                       -                        -                103,948        (103,948)                    -   
 
All balances resulted from the time lag between dates that (1) interfund goods and services are provided 
or reimbursable expenditures occur, (2) transactions are recorded in the accounting system, and (3) 
payments between funds are made. Since all interfund balances were reclassified as revenues or 
expenditures respectfully, there were no remaining interfund balances at the fiscal year end.  
 
H. Interfund Transfers 
 
Transfer balances at September 30, 2013, consisted of the following: 
 

              TRANSFERS IN:                  
Governmental  Business-Type 
      Activities           Activities         
         Other 
   Governmental   Other Business- 

                             TRANSFERS OUT:                                       Fund              Type Fund               Total         
Governmental activities: 
    General Fund      $           988,587                                       -            988,587 
    MS Development                  -   -            - 
    Other Governmental Funds                 -   -                       - 
 
Business-type activities: 
    Water and Sewer Fund                 -  (988,587)     (988,587) 
     Solid Waste                   -    -                      - 
           Total      $           988,587               (988,587)                    - 
Transfers are used to (a) move revenues from the fund that statute or budget requires to collect them to 
the fund that statute or budget requires to expend them and to (b) use unrestricted revenues collected in 
the general fund to finance various programs accounted for in other funds in accordance with budgetary 
authorizations.                                                          
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NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

September 30, 2013 
 
 
NOTE 4. OTHER NOTES 
 
A. Property Tax 
 
Property tax is levied on the assessed (appraised) value as compiled by the Jackson County Tax 
Assessor for all real and business personal property located in the City. The assessment roll is approved 
and the levy is set before September 30, following a series of public hearings to receive citizen 
objections. 
 
Resulting taxes are due on or before February 1. Installment payments are accepted on or before 
February 1, May 1, and August 1. An inter-local government agreement, effective October 1, 1989, 
provided for billing and collection of City and Pascagoula School District taxes by Jackson County, 
Mississippi. 
 
Included in revenues are taxes for automobile tags, which are assessed and collected by Jackson County. 
 
Such taxes, less a collection fee, are remitted to the City monthly. 
 
Property tax revenues are recognized as the related ad valorem taxes are collected. Additional amounts 
estimated to be collectible in time to be a resource for payment of obligations incurred during the fiscal 
year and therefore susceptible to accrual in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles 
have been recognized as revenue. 
 
Increases in taxes are generally limited by State law to 10% of the taxes collected for the prior 
assessment year, excluding taxes from property added to the tax assessment rolls in the current year. 
 
The City is required by law to assess and collect taxes necessary for operation of the Jackson-George 
Regional Library System and for service of certain related debt. Jackson-George Regional Library 
System provides services to residents of inside and outside the geographic boundaries of the City and 
has a separate appointed and/or elected board. Jackson-George Regional Library System is not included 
as a component unit of the City's financial reporting entity because the City does not have the ability to 
exercise control over library operations or approve budgets. 
 
For the year ended September 30, 2013, the City's 2013 tax rate was as follows: 
 

MILLS 
General Fund       24.350 
Library Fund         1.000 
Debt Service         6.750 

Total       32.100 
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CITY OF GAUTIER, MISSISSIPPI 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

September 30, 2013 
 
NOTE 4. OTHER NOTES (continued) 
 
B. Pension Plans 
 
Defined Benefit Pension Plan 
 
Plan Description - The City of Gautier contributes to the Public Employees' Retirement System of 
Mississippi (PERS), a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan. PERS provides 
retirement and disability benefits, annual cost-of-living adjustments, and death benefits to plan members 
and beneficiaries. Benefit provisions are established by State law and may be amended only by the State 
of Mississippi Legislature. PERS issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial 
statements and required supplementary information. That information may be obtained by writing to 
Public Employee Retirement System, PERS Building, 429 Mississippi Street, Jackson, MS 39201-1005, 
or by calling (601) 359-3589 or 1-800-444-PERS. 
 
Funding Policy - PERS' members are required to contribute 9.00 %, of their annual covered salary and 
the Jackson County Utility Authority is required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate. The 
current rate of 15.75% (effective July 1, 2013) of annual covered payroll is contributed by the City. 
These were the rates and the end of FY 2013. The contribution requirements of PERS' members are 
established and may be amended only by the State of Mississippi Legislature. 
 
The City of Gautier's contributions to PERS for the years ended September 30, 2013 and 2012 were 
$670,020 and $729,428, respectively, representing 100% of the required contributions for the year. 
 
Deferred Compensation Plan  
 

The City, through PERS, offers its employees a voluntary deferred compensation plan created in 
accordance with Internal Revenue Code Section 457. The plan, available to all City employees, permits 
them to defer a portion of their salary until future years. The deferred compensation is not available to 
employees until termination, retirement, death or unforeseeable emergency.   
 

The assets of the plan are held in trust for the exclusive benefit of participants and their beneficiaries. 
The requirements of Internal Revenue Code Section 457(g) prescribe that the City does not own the 
amounts deferred by employees, including the related income on those amounts. Additionally, the City 
does not have fiduciary accountability for the plan. Accordingly, the assets and the liability for 
compensation deferred by plan participants, including earnings on plan assets, are not included in the 
City's financial statements. 
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CITY OF GAUTIER, MISSISSIPPI 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

September 30, 2013 
 

NOTE 4. OTHER NOTES (continued) 
 
C. Commitments and Contingencies  
 
Related Party Transactions 
 
No known transactions requiring disclosure occurred between the City and its employees or elected 
officials. 
 
Grants and Awards - the City participates in certain federal and state assisted grant programs. These 
programs are subject to program compliance audits by the grantors or their representatives. Any liability 
for reimbursement which may arise as the result of these audits is not believed by management to be 
material. 
 
Litigation - various claims and lawsuits are pending against the City. In the opinion of City 
management, after consultation with legal counsel, the potential loss on all claims and lawsuits will not 
materially affect the City's financial position. 
 
Contract Commitments Service Contracts: 
 
On May 17, 1988, the City entered into an agreement with Jackson County, under which the County 
provides animal shelter services for a current fee of $10,560 per year.  
 
On January 1, 1988, the City entered into an agreement with Mississippi Regional Housing Authority 
No. VIII (the Housing Authority) for the development of low-income housing units operated by the 
Housing Authority within the municipality. Under the agreement, all projects are exempt from all real 
and personal property taxes and special assessments levied by any taxing body. The Housing Authority 
makes annual payments in lieu of such taxes for the public services and facilities furnished by the City. 
Annual payments would be the lesser of 10% of shelter rent collected or the amount permitted to be paid 
by state law in effect on the date payment is made. 
 
The City's existing contract for trash collection services was initiated on September 1, 2012 and later 
renewed through September of 2014. The City has the option to renew the contract for four additional 
one year terms. The contractor is paid on a per unit basis. 
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CITY OF GAUTIER, MISSISSIPPI 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

September 30, 2013 
 
NOTE 4. OTHER NOTES (continued)  
 
Construction Contracts: 
 
The City entered into various construction contracts in the prior Fiscal Year for infrastructure 
improvements with some estimated remaining commitments at September 3, 2013. The majority of 
these projects were funded by various state and federal grants. See Note 3. D for more detailed 
information on these projects. 
 
D. Joint Venture  
 
The City is a member of the joint venture Jackson County Utility Authority (the Authority), which was 
established by an act of the Mississippi Legislature to design and implement a water pollution abatement 
plan. The Authority is responsible for the operations and maintenance of the wastewater treatment plants 
for the cities of Gautier, Moss Point, Ocean Springs and Pascagoula. The Authority enters into 
subscription agreements with each of the governing bodies and districts to fund its operations.  
 
 
The following is a synopsis of the Authority's financial statements as of and for the year ended 
September 30, 2013, a complete copy of which is on file at the administrative offices of the Authority, 
located at 1225 Jackson Avenue, Pascagoula, Mississippi 39567. 

 
BALANCE SHEET 

ASSETS  
     Current assets          $                 2,828,776 
     Restricted investments                3,124,829 
     Capital assets         $    135,840,387 

Total assets         $    141,793,992 
 

 
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS  
LIABILITIES  
     Current liabilities         $          6,651,372 
     Noncurrent liabilities                 8,268,820 

Total liabilities               14,920,192  
 
NET POSITION              126,873,800 

Total liabilities and net assets       $     141,793,992 
 
 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES 
Operating revenues         $         9,212,044 
Operating expenses             (14,625,320) 
Non-operating revenues                1,963,443 
Change in Net Assets              ( 3,449,833) 
Net Position, Beginning of the Year               130,323,633  
Net Position assets, end of the year       $     126,873,800  
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CITY OF GAUTIER, MISSISSIPPI 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

September 30, 2013 
 
NOTE 4. OTHER NOTES (continued)  
 
E. Deficit fund balances/Retained earnings  
 
There were only two deficit fund balances of individual funds were as follows: 
 

Governmental activities: 
 

Tidelands Grant Fund                              5,876  
BP Oil Spill Grant Fund          395 
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CITY OF GAUTIER, MISSISSIPPI 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

September 30, 2013 
 
NOTE 4. OTHER NOTES (continued)  
 
F. Settlements from prior periods:  
 
GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS: 
 

 Governmental   Business-type 
     Activities          Activities            Total          

 
Net position September 30, 2012, as originally presented  $ 8,231,573        19,187,518       27,419,091 

 
                 
     Prior period adjustment – Liability Adjustment        182,780                                182,780 
Net position, September 30, 2012    $ 8,414,353    19,187,518       27,601,871 
 
 
 
 
FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS: 
 

        Water and Sewer 
       General Fund             Fund          
 

Fund balance September 30, 2012, as originally presented          $  3,806,853   19,187,518 
 
       Prior Period Adjustment                      182,780                          0 

 
Fund balance, September 30, 2012              $ 3,989,633      $   19,187,518 
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CITY OF GAUTIER, MISSISSIPPI 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

September 30, 2013 
 
NOTE 4. OTHER NOTES (continued) 
 
G. Subsequent events – 
 
• Community Disaster Loan of $ 350,000 plus accrued interest forgiven 
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OTHER SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
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CITY OF GAUTIER, MISSISSIPPI 
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE - GENERAL FUND 

For the Year Ended September 30, 2013 
 

              Actual 
     Original            Amounts           Variance with 

                Budgeted       Final Budgeted     (Budgetary         Final Budget 
                 Amounts           Amounts               Basis)             Over / Under   

Resources (inflows): 
     Taxes        4,002,857      4,025,457          3,876,439    (149,018) 
     Licenses and permits         242,200         249,265              229,491                (19,774) 
     Inter-governmental revenues      2,874,500       2,872,150           2,873,203          1,053 
     Fines and forfeitures       1,010,000            797,037               735,180      (61,857) 
     Miscellaneous                   1,129,656         1,292,454            1,315,708                 23,254  
Available for appropriations                  9,259,213         9,236,363            9,030,021              (206,342) 
Charges to appropriations 
     (outflows): 
     General Government  
         Personnel services     1,032,969          996,454              996,471          (   17) 
         Supplies             56,000            23,090     19,427                   3,663 
         Other services and charges        178,972          566,792   558,748          8,044 
         Capital outlay          356,500            61,655     61,643               12 
     Public Safety 
         Personnel services      4,604,807       4,594,308           4,370,527     223,781 
         Supplies          290,700            42,200                15,303        26,897 
         Other services and charges       190,350          444,850  370,904        73,946 
         Capital outlay           31,700            31,700     29,219          2,481 
     Public Works 

         Personnel services        194,884         274,027   277,627       ( 3,600) 
         Supplies            10,401           20,074      6,514       13,560 
         Other services and charges       161,117         224,571  206,589       17,982 
     Economic Development & Planning 
         Personnel services        487,085         553,248              549,895                    3,353 
         Supplies            26,900                 5,900                  3,812                    2,088 
         Other Services & Charges               114,200             121,043                72,844                  48,199 
     Culture and recreation 
         Personnel services          95,452          97,052    96,883            169 
         Supplies            15,800          21,190      3,166       18,024 
         Other Services & Charges                 49,800              56,300                  61,508       ( 5,208) 
     Transfers       1,018,094        768,094  768,090     4 
     Debt Service                    292,114        282,447             196,283                 86,164 
     Total charges to Appropriations       9,207,845     9,184,995          8,665,453               519,542 
Revenues less expenditures          51,368          51,368             364,568     313,200 
Budgetary fund balance, 
     October 1, 2012           $       300,000            300,000                510,267               210,267 
                                                                                                                      
Budgetary fund balance, 
     September 30, 2013          $       351,368         351,368             874,835               523,467 

 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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CITY OF GAUTIER, MISSISSIPPI 
SCHEDULE OF BUDGET-TO-ACTUAL RECONCILIATION 

GENERAL FUND 
For the Year Ended September 30, 2013 

 
An explanation of the differences between budgetary inflows and outflows and revenues and 
expenditures determined in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles is as follows: 
 
 
Sources/inflows of resources: 
 
          Actual amounts (budgetary basis) "available for appropriation" from the budgetary 
                comparison schedule           $  9,030,021 
 
Differences - budget to GAAP: 

 
    Transfers from other funds are inflows for budgetary purposes but are not  

          revenues for financial reporting purposes             (988,587) 
 

    Accrual basis revenues are not revenues for budget purposes        (1,031,679) 
 
               Special Revenue Fund revenues are included  as General Fund revenues for 
                      financial reporting purposes              2,639,316 
 
                      Total revenues as reported on the Statement of Revenue, Expenditures, 
                           and Changes in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds, General Fund     $  9,649,071 
 
Uses/outflows of resources: 
 
              Actual amounts (budgetary basis) "total charges to appropriations" from the  
                      Budgetary comparison schedule        $   8,665,453 
 
Differences - budget to GAAP: 
             Special Revenue Fund expenditures included in the General Fund for reporting, 
                     but not for budget purposes.              2,425,785 
 
             The budget is prepared on the cash basis whereas the fund statements are on the 
                     modified accrual basis. This is the effect of expenditure accrual transactions.    (1,208,661) 
 
             Transfers to other funds are outflows for budgetary purposes but are not  
                     expenditures for financial reporting purposes                              (768,090) 
 
                     Total expenditures as reported on the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, 
                     and Changes in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds, General Fund   $    9,114,487 

 
 
 
 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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CITY OF GAUTIER, MISSISSIPPI 

NOTES TO BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE - GENERAL FUND 
For the Year Ended September 30, 2013 

 
NOTE 1: BUDGETARY DATA 
 
The procedures used by the City in establishing the budgetary data are as follows: 
 
1. The City Clerk's office prepares estimates of available revenue. 
 
2. Department directors submit proposed expenditure budgets to the City Clerk by June 1, each year. 
 
3. The City Manager and the department directors review expenditure budgets, and necessary revisions 
are made. 
 
4. Budgeted revenues and expenditures are balanced, and a summary budget is prepared and presented 
to the City Council. 
 
5. The City Manager submits the proposed budget to the Board by August 1. 
 
6. A public hearing is conducted to obtain taxpayer comments. 
 
7. The final budget is approved by September 15, and must be published in a local newspaper on or 
before September 30. 
 
8. Budget revisions are made throughout the year (prior to September), as reallocations of funds are 
necessary or circumstances change, which dictate the need for a budget amendment. 
 
9. Formal budgetary integration is employed as a management control device during the year for all 
budgetary funds. 
 
10. The general fund budget is adopted on a cash basis as required by State statute. The appropriated 
budget is prepared by fund, function and department. The legal level of budgetary controls is the 
department level. The City Clerk's office exercises budgetary monitoring throughout the fiscal year. An 
adopted budget may not exceed its appropriated level without Board approval. However, department 
heads may make transfers of appropriations within a department. Budgetary controls are implemented 
through the City Clerk's office through the use of budget-to-actual reports. Any purchase requisition that 
will cause a line item to exceed its budget will be disallowed by the City Manager. The department head 
will then be required to make an inter-departmental budget transfer or request a budget amendment. 
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CITY OF GAUTIER, MISSISSIPPI 

NOTES TO BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE - GENERAL FUND 
For the Year Ended September 30, 2013 

 
NOTE 2: SURPLUS OF APPROPRIATIONS OVER EXPENDITURES (BUDGET) 
 
Although revenues projected were less than actual for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2013, as 
shown on Page 54, through the prudence of the City Management and the City Council expenditures 
were less than anticipated. Therefore the overall actual ending fund balance was a surplus that was much 
greater than was anticipated.  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
- 57 – 

 
 
 

Page 85 of 255



CITY OF GAUTIER, MISSISSIPPI 
SCHEDULE OF BUDGET-TO-ACTUAL RECONCILIATION 

MS DEVELOPMENT BANK KATRINA LOAN FUND 
For the Year Ended September 30, 2013 

 
 

Actual 
Original              Amounts Variance with 

           Budgeted Final Budgeted        (Budgetary          Final Budget 
           Amounts                Amounts                  Basis)             Over / Under   

 
Budgetary fund balance,  
    October 1, 2012   $         3,495              3,455                   3,495                       - 
Resources (inflows): 
 
    Transfers In                      278,566              278,566                278,566                              - 

Amounts available for 
   Appropriations         282,061           282,061                282,061                       - 
 

Charges to appropriations 
   (outflows): 
    General Government Debt 
               Service                    279,616           279,616                279,601                           15 
    Capital Outlay                          -                            -                             - 
    Transfers Out                    -                      -                           -                              - 
         Total charges to 
               Appropriations                   279,616           279,616                279,601                    15 
Budgetary fund balance, 
    September 30, 2013            $        2,445                    2,445                    2,460                           15 
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OTHER SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
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CITY OF GAUTIER, MISSISSIPPI 
SCHEDULE OF SURETY BONDS OF MUNICIPAL OFFICIALS 

For the Year Ended September 30, 2013 
 
                    Name                                                             Position                                  Amount                    
 
Gordon Gollott         Mayor    $ 100,000 
 
Mary Martin          Councilwoman      100,000 
 
Johnny Jones                     Councilman       100,000 
 
Hurley Ray Guillotte         Councilman       100,000 
 
Casey Vaughn          Councilman       100,000 
 
Charles Anderson         Councilman       100,000 
 
Adam Colledge         Councilman       100,000 
 
Samantha Abell         City Manager        50,000 

 
Cindy Russell                City Clerk              50,000  
 
Dante Elbin                   Police Chief         50,000 

 
Teresa Montgomery         Deputy City Clerk        50,000 
 
Tricia Thigpen          Deputy City Clerk        50,000 
 
Chassity Bilbo          Executive Assistant        50,000 
 
Lekeisha Hill          Administrative Clerk       50,000 
 
Rachel Honea          Administrative Clerk       50,000 
 
Addie Bang          Administrative Clerk       50,000 
 
Veneice Barnett         Accounting/Personnel Clerk      50,000 
 
Kim Sheppard          Accounting/Personnel Clerk      50,000 
 
Lequetta Reddix         Accounting/Personnel Clerk      50,000 
 
Donna Davis          Court Clerk         50,000 
 
Timothy Werner         Deputy Court Clerk        50,000 
 
Milton Ricks, Jr.         Field Supervisor        50,000 
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CITY OF GAUTIER, MISSISSIPPI 
SCHEDULE OF SURETY BONDS OF MUNICIPAL OFFICIALS (continued) 

For the Year Ended September 30, 2013 
 
 
 

Hope Merrell        Dispatcher       50,000 
 
Melissa Ezell        Dispatcher       50,000 
 
Carey Faulkner       Dispatcher       50,000 
 
Marc Lebhart        Dispatcher       50,000 
 
Don Sawyer        Dispatcher       50,000 
 
Keisha Keyes        Dispatcher       50,000 
 
Alexis Barnes        Dispatcher       50,000 
 
Kena Ehlers        Dispatcher       50,000 
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CITY OF GAUTIER, MISSISSIPPI 
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 

For the Year Ended September 30, 2013 
 
 
Federal Grantor/Pass-Through   Federal CFDA             Pass-Through Entity          Federal 
    Grantor/Program Title                                                 Number                     Identifying Number               Expenditures   
 
U.S. Department of Justice 
Passed Through State: 
    Local Law Enforcement Block Grant 
          Task Force Grant         16.592         7NM1301         $   13,792 
          FBI Safe Street          16.592         18PGCP540Z              16,251 
          HIDTA           16.592         18PGCP540Z   10,819 
           
           
U.S. Department of the Interior 
Passed Through State: 

Coastal Improvement Assistance        15.668         MS.30.701             16,483        
Coastal Improvement Assistance       15.668         USFWSF12AF00434            59,069 

 
U.S. Department of Homeland Security 
Passed Through State: 
 
          Assistance to Firefighters        97.044         EMW-2012-FO-02393             76,396 
           
         Federal Emergency Management Center 
 
         Hazard Mitigation Grant – Police       97.039         HMBP 1794-23-01  22,400 
         Hurricane Isaac          97.036         FEMA-4081-DR-MS  28,525       
 
U.S. Department of Housing and Urban 
Development 
         Passed Through State: 

 
            Community Development Block Grant - 14.219/14.228  R-109-192-01-KCR       2,425,785 
  
U.S Department of Transportation 
Passed Through State: 
 
  Urban Youth Corps         20.000        STP-9999-09(032)-106638- 
                 304300            36,529 

       STP-9194-00(001) / 
             Transportation Improvement        20.205          LPA/105069-801000             137,715 

 
Total Expenditures of Federal Awards         $ 2,843,764 

 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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CITY OF GAUTIER, MISSISSIPPI 
NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 

For the Year Ended September 30, 2013 
 
NOTE 1. BASIS OF PRESENTATION  
 
The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards includes the federal grant activity of 
the City of Gautier and is presented on the cash basis of accounting. The information in this schedule is 
presented in accordance with the requirements of OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local 
Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Therefore, some amounts presented in this schedule may 
differ from amounts presented in, or used in the presentation of, the basic financial statements. 
 
A reconciliation follows: 
 
 Totals above        $ 2,843,764 
 Accrued in prior year        (1,310,326) 
 Accrued at 09-30-2013              50,249 
 
 Amount included in Financial Statements    $ 1,583,687 
 
 
NOTE 2. LOAN AGREEMENTS OUTSTANDING 
 
Proceeds of State Revolving Fund loans were obtained for sewer rehabilitation and drinking water 
system improvements. The State Revolving Fund is financed, at least in part, by the U.S. Environmental 
Protection Agency. The principal balance on September 30, 2013, was: 
 

DWI-H280092-01-3      $ 1,082,820 
SRF-C2808754-01-3         1,456,513 
SRF-C280879-01-1            990,469 
DWI-H280114-01-2            615,167 
DWI-H280114-02-0            324,006 
SRF-C280879-02-2         1,487,575  

            $ 5,956,550  
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CITY OF GAUTIER, MISSISSIPPI 
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS 

For the Year Ended September 30, 2013 
 
 
2012-001 The City was still unable to provide sufficient documentary evidence to support the 

carrying amounts of fixed assets on its books. This finding continues, with the exception 
of taking a physical inventory, and is noted for the third year in Finding 2013-001. 
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MEMBER: American Institute of CPA's                     LLOYD B. MARSHALL, JR. 
    Mississippi Society of CPA's     CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANT 

 

      4321 Gautier Vancleave Rd. Suite A 

     Gautier, Mississippi  39553 

 
     228-497-2788 

 
REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON 
COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL 

STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENTAUDITING 
STANDARDS 

 
The Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council City of Gautier, Mississippi  
 
I have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the 
governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate 
remaining fund information of City of Gautier as of and for the year ended September 30, 2013, 
and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise City of Gautier’s 
basic financial statements, and have issued my report thereon dated June 30, 2014.   

 
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

 
In planning and performing my audit of the financial statements, I considered City of Gautier's 
internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing my opinions on the financial 
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of City of 
Gautier’s internal control. Accordingly, I do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of City 
of Gautier’s internal control.  

 
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to 
prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a 
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable 
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, 
or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet 
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

 
My consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph 
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be 
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant 
deficiencies may exist that are not identified. Given these limitations, during my audit I did not 
identify any deficiencies in internal control that I consider to be material weaknesses. However, 
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.  I did identify certain deficiencies in 
internal control, described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs that I 
consider to be significant deficiencies. It is listed as item 2013-001. 
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Independent Auditor's Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance 
and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with 
Governmental Auditing Standards 

 
Page 2 
 
Compliance and Other Matters 
 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether City of Gautier's financial statements 
are free from material misstatement, I performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions 
of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a 
direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, 
providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of my audit, and 
accordingly, I do not express such an opinion. The results of my tests no disclosed instances of 
noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing 
Standards. 
 
City of Gautier’s Response to Findings 
 
City of Gautier’s response to the findings identified in my audit are described in the 
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. City of Gautier’s response was not 
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and, 
accordingly, I express no opinion on it.   
 
Purpose of this Report  
 
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of my testing of internal control and 
compliance and the result of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of 
the entity’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit per-
formed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal 
control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Gautier, Mississippi 
June 30, 2014 
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MEMBER: American Institute of CPA's                     LLOYD B. MARSHALL, JR. 
    Mississippi Society of CPA's      CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANT 

 

    4321 Gautier Vancleave Rd. Suite A 

     Gautier, Mississippi  39553 

 

REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO EACH MAJOR 
PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE 
WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133 
 
The Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council 
City of Gautier, Mississippi 
 
Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program  
 

I have audited City of Gautier’s compliance with the types of compliance requirements described 
in the OMB Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect   
on each of City of Gautier’s major federal programs for the year ended September 30, 2013.  
City of Gautier’s major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor’s results 
section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.  
 
Management’s Responsibility 
 

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, 
and grants applicable to its federal programs.  
 
Auditor’s Responsibility 
 

My responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of City of Gautier’s major 
federal programs based on my audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. I 
conducted my audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in 
the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in 
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and 
OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. 
Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that I plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements 
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program 
occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about City of Gautier’s 
compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as I considered 
necessary in the circumstances.   
 
I believe that my audit provides a reasonable basis for my opinion on compliance for each major 
federal program. However, my audit does not provide a legal determination of City of Gautier’s 
compliance. 
 
Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 
 

In my opinion, City of Gautier complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance 
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major 
federal programs for the year ended September 30, 2013.  
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Independent Auditors' Report on Compliance with Requirements Applicable to Each Major 
Program and on Internal Control Over Compliance in Accordance with OMB Circular A-133 
Page 2 
 

 
 

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance   
 

Management of City of Gautier is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal 
control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above.  In 
planning and performing my audit of compliance, I considered City of Gautier’s internal control 
over compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on 
each major federal program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal 
program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with OMB 
Circular A-133, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal 
control over compliance. Accordingly, I do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of City of 
Gautier’s internal control over compliance. 
 
A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control 
over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing 
their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of 
compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal 
control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over 
compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of 
compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on 
a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance 
requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control 
over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 
 
My consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in 
the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal 
control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. I did not 
identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that I consider to be material 
weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 
 
The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of 
my testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the 
requirements of OMB Circular A-133. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other 
purpose.  

 
 
 
 
 
Gautier, Mississippi 
June 30, 2014 
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MEMBER: American Institute of CPA's                     LLOYD B. MARSHALL, JR. 
    Mississippi Society of CPA's    CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANT 

 

      4321 Gautier Vancleave Rd. Suite A 

     Gautier, Mississippi  39553 
 

    (228)-497-2788 

 
 

            INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE 
            WITH MISSISSIPPI STATE LAWS AND REGULATIONS 

 
 
 
The Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council 
City of Gautier, Mississippi 
 
I have audited the accompanying financial statements of the City of Gautier, Mississippi (the City) as of 
and for the year ended September 30, 2013 and have issued my report dated September 30, 2014. I have 
conducted my audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards. 
 
Compliance  
 
As required by the state legal compliance audit program prescribed by the Office of the State Auditor, I 
have also performed procedures to test compliance with certain state laws and regulations. However, 
providing an opinion on compliance with state laws and regulations was not an objective of my audit 
and, accordingly, I do not express such an opinion. 
 
The results of those procedures and my audit of the basic financial statements disclosed the following 
material instances of noncompliance with state laws and regulations. My findings and recommendations 
and your responses are as follows: 
 
Finding 
 
The City was not able to generate a ledger providing detailed information of the City's fixed 
assets. The City should be responsible for custody of its assets and accurately report them in the 
financial statements. Further, the City has not been reconciling the annual inventory of fixed 
assets to ledger balances; however, a comprehensive fiscal inventory of fixed assets taken for the 
Fiscal Year ending September 30, 2013 which is an improvement in the process. 
 
Recommendation  
 
I recommend the City maintain a detailed ledger of fixed assets, along with a listing of additions and 
deletions during the year. This ledger should be reconciled to the annual inventory. The Office of the 
State Auditor has prepared forms and checklists to assist municipalities in performing this required 
inventory; they are available for download on the State Auditor's website. 
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Auditee's Response 
 
Management recognizes the issue regarding fixed assets. The City Clerk has been and is in the process 
of making great strides in resolving the problem, having taken a complete asset inventory for Fiscal 
2013. Additionally, an individual with comprehensive experience in this area has been retained to 
oversee the fixed asset inventory. 
 
City of Gautier’s Response to Findings 
 
City of Gautier’s response to the findings identified in my audit is described above. City of Gautier’s 
response was not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements 
and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it.   
 
This report is intended for the information of the City's management and the Office of the State Auditor 
and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. 
Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Gautier, Mississippi 
June 30, 2014  
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CITY OF GAUTIER, MISSISSIPPI 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

For the Year Ended September 30, 2013 
 
A. SUMMARY OF AUDIT RESULTS 

 
1.  In my report, my opinion on the financial statements, was qualified for inadequate records for 
     fixed assets. 

 
2.  A material weakness relating to the audit of the financial statements is reported in the 
     Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters.  
     There were no significant deficiencies noted. 

 
3. No instances of noncompliance material to the financial statements of the City of Gautier, 
    Mississippi are reported in the Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on 
    Compliance and Other Matters.  

 
4. No material weaknesses relating to the audit of major federal award programs are reported in 
    the Report on Compliance with Requirements Applicable to Each Major Program and Internal 
    Control Over Compliance. There were no significant deficiencies noted. 

 
5. The auditor's report on compliance for major federal award programs for the City of Gautier, 
    Mississippi expresses an unqualified opinion. 

 
6. There are no audit findings relative to the major federal award programs for the City of 
    Gautier, Mississippi, that are to be reported in Part C of this schedule. 

 
7. Major program tested: 

 
Community Development Block Grant - 14.219/14.228   

 
8. The dollar threshold for distinguishing Type A and B programs was $300,000. 

 
9. The City of Gautier, Mississippi did not qualify as a low-risk auditee. 

 
B. FINDINGS - FINANCIAL STATEMENT AUDIT 
 
Reportable instances of noncompliance and reportable conditions and material weaknesses 

 
2013-001 

 
Finding 

 
Criteria: Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) for Governments indicate that they 
should have adequate records regarding the fixed assets, accumulated depreciation and 
depreciation expense that detail each class of asset, the description, date purchased or built, the 
cost (or estimated cost), the depreciation method (if applicable), the depreciation for the  year 
and accumulated depreciation. 
 
 
 

- 72 – 
Page 101 of 255



CITY OF GAUTIER, MISSISSIPPI 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

For the Year Ended September 30, 2013 
 
B. FINDINGS - FINANCIAL STATEMENT AUDIT (continued)  
 
Condition: The City was unable to provide sufficient documentary evidence to support the 
carrying amounts of fixed assets on its books, and they were unable to satisfy GAAP as to the 
existence and valuation of the City's fixed assets.  

 
Cause: The City has not reconciled the carrying amount of fixed assets on their books to their 
inventory. 

 
Effect: This weakness in internal control regarding fixed assets leaves the City susceptible to 
misappropriation and unverifiable values on their books for the related items 

 
Recommendation: I recommend the City implement a fixed assets control system. At the end of 
the fiscal year, the accounting department should reconcile the general ledger to the inventory 
control records. 

 
Auditee's Response: Management recognizes the problem with the fixed assets. The City 
Purchasing Agent has been and is making great strides in resolving the problem. 

 
Follow-up on prior audit findings: The previous year had the same finding listed as 2013-001. 
 
 
C. FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - MAJOR FEDERAL AWARD PROGRAMS 
AUDIT 
 
 
There were no findings related to the major federal program. 
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There came for consideration of the Mayor and Members of the Council of the 
City of Gautier, Mississippi, the following: 
 

ORDER NUMBER 228-2014 
 

 IT IS HEREBY ORDERED by the Mayor and Members of the Council of the City 
of Gautier, Mississippi that the Construction Engineering & Inspection Services Contract 
with Neel-Schaffer, Inc. for the Transportation Enhancement Project (Streetscape 
Improvements) as presented is hereby authorized. 
 
 IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that the upset cost limit for the above referenced 
project is $65,120.79.  
 
 IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that the City Manager or City Clerk is authorized to 
execute any and all documents necessary. 
 
 Motion was made by Councilwoman Martin seconded by Councilman 
Colledge and the following vote was recorded: 
 
 AYES: Gordon Gollott 
   Mary Martin 
   Johnny Jones 
   Hurley Ray Guillotte 
   Casey Vaughan 
   Rusty Anderson 
   Adam Colledge  
  
 NAYS: None 
  
              
        MAYOR 
 
ATTEST: 
 
      
CITY CLERK 
 
 Passed and Adopted by Mayor and Members of the Council of the City of 
Gautier, Mississippi, at the meeting of October 7, 2014. 
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CITY OF GAUTIER 

MEMORANDUM 

 
 
To:  Samantha Abell, City Manager 

From:   Patty Huffman, Grants & Projects Manager 

Through:   Chandra Nicholson, Economic Development and Planning Director 

Date:    September 29, 2014 

Subject:          Construction Engineering & Inspection Services Contract with Neel-Schaffer      
for the Transportation Enhancement Project (Streetscape Improvements)                                         
STP-0494-00(008)LPA/106378-701000     

                                                                           

 

REQUEST: 
 
The Economic Development and Planning Department requests authorization for the City of 
Gautier to enter into a Construction Engineering & Inspection Services Contract with Neel-
Schaffer, Inc. for the Transportation Enhancement Project (Streetscapes Improvement). 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
The Economic Development and Planning Department requests authorization to enter into a 
contract with Neel-Schaffer, Inc. for Construction Engineering & Inspection Services for the 
above referenced project for an upset cost limit of $65,120.79.  This project includes improving 
and expanding the existing pedestrian/bicycle access walks within the downtown area along a 1.5 
mile stretch of Highway 90 from Beasley Road to Ladnier Road, along a 0.22 mile stretch of 
William Payne Adams Road from Dolphin Drive to Beasley Road, and along a 0.17 mile stretch 
of City property between William Payne Adams Road and Highway 90. These improvements 
include:  wide multiuse sidewalks, brick paver seating areas, trash receptacles, brick paver 
crosswalks, pedestrian lighting installation, and pond fountains. All facilities will be ADA 
accessible.  
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The Mississippi Department of Transportation has reviewed the CE & I contract and given 
permission to proceed with contract execution.   
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 
City staff recommends that City Council authorize entering into the Construction Engineering & 
Inspection Services Contract with Neel-Schaffer, Inc. as described above.  The City Council 
may: 

1. authorize entering into the CE & I Services Contract as presented; or 
2. authorize entering into the CE & I Services Contract with changes; or 
3. disapprove entering into the CE & I Services Contract as presented. 

 

ATTACHMENT(S): 
 
MDOT Contract Review Letter 
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Neel-Schaffer CE & I Services Contract- Gautier Streetscape Improvements  
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